
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS

FEBRUARY 14, 2022

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the governing body of the City of
Navasota will be held on the 14th of February, 2022 at 6:00 PM at the City Hall in the
City Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street, Navasota,
Texas 77868, at which time the following subjects will be considered, to wit:

To watch the City Council meeting live please visit the City of Navasota's Youtube
here: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCltnx7BQt0TCIYJRiZ14g5w 
 
1. Call to Order.

2. Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

3. Remarks of visitors: Any citizen may address the City Council on any matter.
Registration forms are available on the podium and/or table in the back of the city
council chambers. This form should be completed and delivered to the City
Secretary by 5:45 p.m. Please limit remarks to three minutes. The City Council will
receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a
future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City
Manager.

4. Staff Report:

(a) Update on Capital Improvements Project; [Jennifer Reyna, Director of Utilities]

(b) Recognition of Lessie Arrington - 50 years of service; [Mayor Bert Miller]

(c) Board and Commission update; and

(d) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community
interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence;
information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public
officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events
organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or
community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled
to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving
imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has
arisen after the posting of the agenda. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]



5. Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and
vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor
or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the
regular agenda. [City Council]

Consent Items are:

A. Consider approval on the minutes for the month of January 2022;

B. Consider approval on the expenditures for the month of January 2022; and

C. Consider approval on the second reading of Ordinance No. 991-22, authorizing
participation with Entergy Service Area Cities in matters concerning Entergy Texas,
Inc. at the Public Utility Commission in 2022 and authorizing the hiring of lawyers
and rate experts.

6. Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and
testimony regarding a zoning change application submitted by Mary Mable,
representing the Navasota George Washington Carver High School Alumni
Association for the property located at 1602 S La Salle, Navasota, Grimes County,
TX, 77868. The zoning change application requests to change the zoning from PU:
Public Use District to B-1: General Business District, for the operation of a
Commercial Day Care Use. The property affected is legally described as S8700 -
Woodward, Block 1 & 2, Acres 3.098. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director]

7. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No.
992-22, regarding a zoning change application submitted by Mary Mable,
representing the Navasota George Washington Carver High School Alumni
Association for the property located at 1602 S La Salle, Navasota, Grimes County,
TX, 77868. The zoning change application requests to change the zoning from PU:
Public Use District to B-1: General Business District, for the operation of a
Commercial Day Care Use. The property affected is legally described as S8700 -
Woodward, Block 1 & 2, Acres 3.098.[Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director]

8. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on a development agreement with PA
Smith Hotel, LLC for the development of sidewalks matching the downtown
streetscapes in the 100 block of West Holland Street & 200 Block of South Tenth
Street, located in Navasota, Grimes County, TX. [Lupe Diosdado, Development
Services Director]

9. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on appointments to boards and
commissions.[Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]

10. Presentation, discussion and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No.
993-22, declining to approve the change in rates requested in Entergy Texas,
Inc.'s ('ETI' or 'Company') Statement of Intent filed with the City of Navasota on
January 31, 2022. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]



11. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on approval of the order of election
for the May 7, 2022 election to elect three City Councilmembers to Positions 1, 2
and 3. [Susie Homeyer, City Secretary]

Presentación, discusión, y posible acción sobre la aprobación del orden de elección
para las elecciones del 7 de mayo de 2022 para elegir a tres concejales de la
ciudad para los cargos 1, 2 y 3.

12. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on Resolution No. 710-22, approving
a joint election contract between the City of Navasota, Grimes County and the
Navasota Independent School District. [Susie Homeyer, City Secretary]

Presentación, discusión, y posible acción sobre la Resolución No. 710-22, que
aprueba un contrato electoral conjunto entre la Ciudad de Navasota, el Condado
de Grimes y el Distrito Escolar Independiente de Navasota

13. Adjourn.

DATED THIS

/JW/
 

BY: JASON WEEKS, CITY MANAGER  
 
I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above notice of
meeting of the governing body of the CITY OF NAVASOTA, is a true and
correct copy of said notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said
notice in the glass bulletin board, in the foyer, on the south side of the
Municipal Building as well as in the bulletin board on the north side of the
Municipal Building of the City of Navasota, Texas, a place convenient and
readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said notice was
posted on the 9th of February, 2022 at 12:47 PM and will remain posted
continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said
meeting. Agendas may be viewed at www.navasotatx.gov.

The City Council reserves the right to convene in Executive Session at any
time deemed necessary for the consideration of confidential matters under
the Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071-551.089.

DATED THIS THE 9TH OF FEBRUARY, 2022

/SMH/

BY: SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATIONS OR
INTERPRETIVE SERVICES MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS
MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE
AT(936) 825 6475 OR (936) 825 6408 OR BY FAX AT (936) 825 2403.





ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 4. AGENDA DATE: February 14,
2022

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: JW
 

Staff Report:

(a) Update on Capital Improvements Project; [Jennifer Reyna,
Director of Utilities]

(b) Recognition of Lessie Arrington - 50 years of service; [Mayor
Bert Miller]

(c) Board and Commission update; and

(d) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of
community interests, including expressions of thanks,
congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday
schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming
events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding
social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored
by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City
officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent
threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that
has arisen after the posting of the agenda. [Jason Weeks, City
Manager]
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. VISION-MISSION-STRATEGIC PLAN - 2022
2. Planning Calendar
3. Municipal Court Report for 01/31/2022

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1644330400x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1644421305x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1644330478x_at.pdf


  

 

 

 
 

Report 

 

and 

 

Strategic Plan 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted 

April 26, 2021 

 

 

Prepared and Facilitated 

By 

Ron Cox Consulting 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

REPORT AND STRATEGIC PLAN 

COUNCIL/STAFF  

RETREAT 

 

CITY OF NAVASOTA 
  

February 12, 2021 

 

Introduction 
 

On February 12, 2021, the Mayor, City Council and staff of the City of Navasota met for 

a retreat planning session. The purpose of this meeting was twofold. 

 

• Confirm and expand the governance philosophy for the City Council. Included in 

that is identifying key elements of the Council’s vision for Navasota. 

• Prepare a strategic plan for the city. 

 

The Mayor, Council and staff freely worked together, and their work was exemplary in 

all respects. Ron Cox facilitated the process. 

 

Governance 

 
In their February 12, 2021 session the Council confirmed the governance policy they 

established in 2017 and expanded on it by further defining their governance philosophy. 

The Council participated in discussions about their role, together and their leadership 

responsibilities. The elements of a strong governance model are having and following 

clear vision and mission, establishing leadership and communications philosophies, and 

identifying the expectations of each other as City Council members, and the City staff, 

and of identifying and recognizing the expectations staff has of the City Council.  

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

3 

The key elements of the Governance Philosophy are leadership, communication and 

understanding and defining expectations. These define how the team will function 

together. Visioning and planning are the key elements that define what the strategies and 

goals are for the City of Navasota and what they will be to ensure the vision is ultimately 

attained. 

 

Governance Model 
 

The governance model first begins with leadership. Each member of the Council asked to 

provide input into how they will lead, communicate and a defining of expectations for 

themselves and staff. 

 

The facilitator began the process by asking each of the members why they ran and serve 

on the City Council. They responded as follows: 

 

The Mayor and Council reviewed and confirmed their Governance Policy and Rules of 

Engagement established in 2017. These are as follows. 

 

Mayor and Council members ran for the office and serve … 

 

• Had already serviced on other boards and wanted to be active in the growth to 

come. 

• To lead city in the right direction. 

• Saw growth coming and saw weaknesses in various ordinances that needed 

strengthening – now growth is really here. 

• To bring a different insight as a native of Navasota. 

• To encourage business growth and economic development. 

• Am able to serve. 

• Originally to change the direction of the city (and have done that). 

• Exciting to be a part of big decisions for the community. 

 

The facilitator then asked the members to describe the attributes they have that will 

contribute to the work of the Council. 

 

Mayor and Council have the following attributes … 

 

• Able to think outside the box on issues. 

• Business experience in the private sector. 

• Provides a technical background. 

• Brings a different point of view, being from a different generation than others on 

the Council. 

• Historical memory as a native of Navasota. 

• Love the community. 

• Committed to the community. 

• Service to the community. 

• Have the time to serve. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

4 

• Have a special needs child bringing different perspective to decision making. 

• Raised seven children and now grandchildren all in Navasota community and 

schools. 

• Different stages of our lives, bring different viewpoints. 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota will lead by … 

 

• Providing the facts. 

• Seeking and gaining understanding of the problems. 

• Listening, asking, seeking information and deciding. 

• Coming together for the greater good – compromising and building consensus. 

• Toward a common goal – betterment of Navasota. 

• Finding a win/win for all. 

• Building consensus. 

• Picking your wins carefully. 

• Not being afraid to admit you are wrong and changing your mind. 

• Being patient. 

• Being humble – not prideful or egotistical. 

• Being passionate about our city, but not dictatorial. 

• Being brave for our city. 

• Showing respect and being respectful of others. 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota will communicate … 

 

• Effectively with citizens, each other and staff… 

• Concisely. 

• Clearly. 

• Completely. 

• Seek and allow responses. 

• Seek to understand. 

• Take the time to explain the issue and resolution to each other and to citizens. 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota expect the following of each other… 

 

• Remember we all work for the citizens – Council and staff alike. 

• Set the table for the citizens on agenda items – fill in the gaps of knowledge for 

them. 

• Follow the process. 

• Be willing to slow the process down. 

• Respect each other and their opinions. 

• Be honest. 

• Be consistent. 

• Do your homework. 

• Be vulnerable – admit you do not know everything.  

• Be willing to learn. 

• Don’t take the issue personally 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

5 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota expect the following of the staff … 

 

• Set the table to explain agenda items for Council and citizens. 

• Be clear and timely in the information flow to Council – understanding and 

responding to individual council members in the way that communicates best to 

them. 

• Don’t take it personally. 

• Provide the full picture – the good, the bad, and the ugly. 

• Have patience. 

• Know your lane and stay in it. 

• Understand the chain-of-command. 

 

(It was noted that the City Council and staff should all have and respond to the same 

expectations.) 

 

The staff expects the following of the Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota (as 

defined by the City Council) … 

 

• Don’t play the “gotcha” game with staff. 

• Have an understanding of staff, their role. 

• Ask questions and don’t assume. 

• Have patience. 

• Be fair. 

• Listen to staff. 

• Be respectful to staff. 

• Seek information on what council can do to help the staff succeed. 

• Seriously consider their recommendations. 

• Attempt to solve the problems that are presented. 

• Give them clear direction. 

• Remember that staff is working for the citizens, as well as the Council. 

• Don’t put undue pressure on staff. 

• Follow the chain-of-command. 

 

Vision and Mission 

 
On February 6, the Council and senior staff discussed the elements vision they have for 

Navasota. Currently, there are is Vision Statement and Mission Statement for the City. 

After a review, the Mayor and Council identified and confirmed the key elements of the 

vision and mission for the City.  

 

Vision Statement 

 

Navasota 2027: What America wants to Be: 

A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service oriented, close-kinit community filled with 

historic charm and promise for people and business. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

6 

 

Vision Elements 

 

These elements were discussed and are presented in no particular order of priority. It was 

noted that in reviewing the Vision Statement from the Comprehensive Plan, these key 

vision elements are consistent with and embodied in the Vision Statement. 

 

• Navasota is a role model for other cities. 

• Clean. 

• Safe. 

• Friendly and inviting. 

• Historic. 

• Beautiful and manicured. 

• Successful. 

• Sustainable. 

• Full of opportunity. 

• Innovative. 

• Charming. 

 

Mission Statement 

 

To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains our heritage, culture and 

uniqueness while maximizing our economic and social development. 

 

Mission Elements 

 

These key mission elements are presented in no particular order of priority. 

 

• Committed. 

• Stay focused on the mission. 

• Dedication and desire. 

• Proper planning. 

• To communicate the Vision. 

• Provide great/exceptional customer service. 

• Clear, consistent, defined responsibilities. 

• Flexible. 

• Understanding of your role and responsibilities. 

 

Strategic Planning 

 
The facilitator led the participants in a SWOT analysis, identifying and discussing the 

strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats for the City of Navasota, both 

organizationally and in the community. The weaknesses then were divided into common 

themes – Areas of Emphasis or Vision Elements. Within each of the Areas of Emphasis, 

opportunities – strategies and goals – were identified to overcome the weaknesses. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

7 

Finally, threats were identified that if not anticipated may get in the way of 

accomplishing the strategies and goals. 

 

The participants were divided into three groups. Each group focused on strengths and 

weaknesses as follows. 

 

Strengths 

 

Group 1 

• Qualified personnel. 

• Close knit team/community. 

• Has a can-do attitude. 

• Pride in community and city organization. 

• Friendly. 

• Great leadership – Council, City Manager and staff. 

• Caring. 

• Small town charm. 

• Service oriented. 

• Open minded and welcoming. 

• Knowledgeable about work, etc. 

• Dedication. 

• Good foundation upon which to build. 

• Resilient. 

• Organization is accountable to the community. 

• Have integrity and honesty. 

• Everyone is team player. 

• Willing to admit to issues and problems. 

• Self-aware. 

• Transparent. 

• Have community support. 

• Have a multi-faceted community makeup. 

• Visionaries. 

• Excellent location. 

• Diversity in the community. 

 

Group 2 

• Great staff. 

• Buy-in from the community. 

• A community feeling. 

• Progressive. 

• Safe. 

• Leadership. 

• Proactive Council. 

• Beginning infrastructure design improvements. 

• City services. 

• Facilities. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

8 

• Partnerships. 

• Potential for growth. 

• Location. 

• History. 

• Industry. 

 

 

Group 3 

• Experience of Council and staff. 

• New councilmembers bringing energy and new ideas. 

• Leadership. 

• Collaboration. 

• Creativity. 

• Openness/inviting community. 

• Honesty/trust. 

• Stability. 

• Teamwork. 

• Loyalty and pride. 

• Service minded. 

• Relationships/friendly/user friendly. 

• Fun. 

• Commitment and dedication. 

 

 

Weaknesses 

 

Group 1 

• Lack of social and health services. 

• Minimal retail services. 

• Lack of transportation services. 

• Lack of after 5 p.m. activities. 

• Aging infrastructure. 

• Difficulty in communication from the city to the citizens. 

• Lack of finances for unfunded mandates. 

• Outside negative perception of the community. 

• Finding and retaining good staff. 

• Lack of seasoned/experienced staff at all levels. 

• Lack of citizen input/involvement. 

• Uninformed criticism from citizens. 

• Limited connectivity to high quality internet. 

• Technologically inhibited/fear of technology 

 

Group 2 

• Fear of change. 

• More work than staff can accomplish. 

• Lack of job career diversity. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

9 

• Perception of the school district. 

• Lack of rental/multifamily in the city. 

• Retail leakage. 

• Lack of amenities for social and family time. 

• Train traffic. 

• Animal control/fire department facilities need replacing. 

• Lack of internet connectivity. 

 

Group 3 

• Communication/understanding of the message. 

• People making assumptions without all the information. 

• Aging infrastructure. 

• Sometimes resistant to change. 

• Dislike of others. 

• Financial resources are limited. 

• Retention of employees. 

• Outside perception of Navasota. 

• People have long memories. 

• Lack of participation by the citizens. 

• Being required to respond to circumstances beyond our control. 

• Limited technology in the community in the city. 

 

Areas of Emphasis 

 

Reviewing the weaknesses presented resulted in the identification of five areas of 

emphasis. 

 

• Governance 

• Economic Development 

• Image/Communication 

• Infrastructure 

 

Weaknesses Rearranged 

 

The weaknesses identified above, were then summarized and arranged to be within one of 

the areas of emphasis. 

 

• Governance 

o Resistance to change. 

o Employee retention. 

o Responding to circumstances beyond city’s control. 

o Unfunded mandates. 

o Lack of participation. 

 

• Economic Development 

o Diversity in career jobs. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

10 

o Sufficient revenue for infrastructure redevelopment. 

o Retail leakage 

o Lack of social and family recreation. 

o Need for diversity in housing. 

o Social and health services. 

 

• Image/Communication 

o Negative perception of school district. 

o Negative perception of city. 

o Inability to provide information to all ages 

▪ Internally and externally. 

▪ Lack of understanding. 

▪ Criticism from the uninformed. 

▪ From city to citizens 

 

• Infrastructure 

o Train traffic. 

o Again infrastructure 

o Transportation. 

o Facilities. 

o Poor quality of internet and technology, city and citywide. 

 

 

Opportunities – Strategies and Goals 

 

The groups then brainstormed to identify opportunities to overcome the weaknesses. 

These opportunities are the basis for the strategies and goals prepared below. 

 

Governance 

• Establish a program to encourage more participation in Navasota 

government. 

o Establish and implement leadership academies. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ academy. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ police academy. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ fire academy. 

o Improve communication and strategic alignment between Council and all 

committees. 

• Establish an employee retention strategy. 

o Identify and promote the work culture, benefits of the city. 

o Promote the community and organizational culture. 

o Explore housing incentives to live and work in Navasota and attract new 

employees. 

o Cast a wider net for employees. 

o Explore opportunities for providing employee benefits that incentivize 

employment and retention. 

• Explore opportunity for a full-time grant writer. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

11 

• Provide a clear sense of direction to all boards related to economic 

development. 

o Establish an Economic Development Strategy with the NEDC 

 

(Note: there were some communications initiatives in Governance. These have been 

moved to Image/Communication to avoid repetition.) 

 

Economic Development 

• Establish a partnership with NISD, Blinn, TAMU and other institutions to 

enhance the economic development process. 

• Seek out grant opportunities. 

o Pursue grants from EDA. 

• Enhance the marketing of Navasota. 

o Marketing to fulfill housing needs. 

o Marketing of lower utility costs compared to other areas. 

o Marketing location and proximity to major metro areas in the state. 

• Seek partners to improve local health and social service providers. 

o Explore health authority with county. 

o Explore partnership with St. Joseph’s healthcare system. 

o Recruit health provider specialists (optometrists and medical providers) 

• Enhance strategic retail recruitment. 

o Continue to partner with Retail Coach. 

o Attend recruitment conferences (industry, retail, restaurants, etc.) 

 

(Note: there were some infrastructure initiatives in Economic Development. These have 

been moved to Infrastructure to avoid repetition.) 

 

Image/Communication 

• Improve the perception and image of Navasota. 

o Establish a positive campaign to promote Navasota. 

▪ Prepare both an in-person and digital message. 

o Identify target audiences. 

▪ Attend realtor conferences to tell the Navasota story. 

▪ Utilize citizens’ academies (see Governance). 

▪ Explore use of Town Hall meetings – in-person and virtual. 

• Establish a program to educate ISD students about local government. 

o Sponsor a job shadowing program for students in the city. 

• Improve communication in general with the public. (Note: moved from 

Governance) 

o Be deliberate about creating buy-in from citizens.  

▪ Inform, educate and cast the vision. 

o Prepare and implement a communication protocol. 

 

Infrastructure 

• Prepare a plan for construction of an elevated grade crossing over the 

railroad tracks. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

12 

o Identify location and right of way needs for the crossing. 

o Establish costs to city to accommodate the crossing. 

o Identify land for a substation for fire and animal control. 

o Establish contact and conversation with the railroad. 

• Prepare a capital improvements plan and program for needed city 

infrastructure. 

o Improve aging infrastructure. 

o Improve aging and inadequate facilities. 

o Expand parks, trails and bike paths. 

o Identify funding sources – bonds, grants, etc. 

• Create additional opportunity for social and family amenities. 

o Create additional sports facilities. 

o Make park improvements – trails, bike paths, etc. 

• Identify and plan for needed improvements to the community’s internet 

system. 

o Identify and review the existing systems available to the City 

▪ BVCOG Fiber Loop 

▪ Midsouth Synergies 

▪ Other 

 

Threats 

 

Finally, Council and staff identified threats to accomplishing the goals and strategies that 

have been identified. 

 

• Fear – lack of understanding of the issues and the unknown. 

• Money. 

• Economic downturn. 

• Federal and state unfunded mandates and restrictions to local government. 

• Social media. 

• Uncommitted leadership. 

• Politization of local government. 

• Suffering the unintended consequences of outside mandates. 

• Encroaching crime. 

• Another pandemic – COVID. 

• Adverse weather. 

• No response to the failing infrastructure. 

• The “cancel culture” – just turning off or destroying what one disagrees with – 

refusal to dialogue. 

• Not adapting to the change in the ideology of the culture. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

13 

City Staff Implementation Sessions 

 
April 5 and 14, 2021 

 

On April 5, 2021 the facilitator met with the City Manager and staff to review the 

outcomes of the planning session and to determine next steps for the development of the 

implementation plan. 

 

Implementation Plan Process. The staff reviewed a template to be used to develop the 

implementation portion of the planning process. During the discussions, a staff member 

was assigned as the team facilitator for the development of the implementation plan for 

each areas of emphasis. Further they began the process of developing action steps, with 

proposed timelines, and budget implications (if they were known at the time).  

 

On April 14, 2021 staff again met with the facilitator to review and complete a draft 

implementation plan. The implementation plan is included in this document.  

 

 

 

Reporting 
 

Finally, staff established reporting protocols. These protocols serve the purpose of 

keeping the staff on schedule with the implementation of strategies, keeping the City 

Manager informed, and providing regular reports to the Mayor and City Council on the 

status of the implementation of the adopted strategies. This provides for long term 

accountability toward the implementation of the Strategic Plan. 

 

Reporting Protocols  
 

• Council 

o Receives updates at least monthly from staff at Council meetings 

regarding various projects related to the strategic plan. 

o Receives formal status reports, including a semi-annual and annual report 

from staff to the City Council. 

• City Manager 

o City Manager receives regular – both formal and informal - updates from 

staff at regular staff meetings on progress of assignments. 

 

City Council Approval 

April 26, 2021 
 

On TBD, 2021, the City Council reviewed their work as well as the work of the staff 

since the planning session in January. After a thorough discussion the Report was 

approved as amended unanimously.  

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

14 

Conclusion 
 

The Mayor, Council and staff of the City of Navasota worked through a governance and 

planning process that allowed the Council to create a governance model and identify and 

expand strategies for moving the city forward. The process brought the staff leadership 

and Council closer together as a team and developed an implementation process to ensure 

the strategies are addressed and accomplished over time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

15 

 
 

 

 

Strategic Plan 

2021 
 

 

 

 

Council/Staff Planning Retreat  

February 12, 2021 

 

 

Adopted 

April 26, 2021 

 
 

Prepared and Facilitated 

By 

Ron Cox Consulting 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

16 

Vision Statement 
(Adopted 2017) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Navasota 2027: What America wants to Be: 

A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service oriented, 

close-kinit community filled with historic charm 

and promise for people and business. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

17 

Key Vision Elements 

2021 

 

 
• Navasota is a role model for other cities. 

 

• Clean. 

 

• Safe. 

 

• Friendly and inviting. 

 

• Historic. 

 

• Beautiful and manicured. 

 

• Successful. 

 

• Sustainable. 

 

• Full of opportunity. 

 

• Innovative. 

 

• Charming. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

18 

Mission Statement 
(Adopted 2017) 

 

 

 

To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that 

maintains our heritage, culture and uniqueness 

while maximizing our economic and social 

development. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

19 

 

Mission Elements 
 

 

 

 

• Committed. 

 

• Stay focused on the mission. 

 

• Dedication and desire. 

 

• Proper planning. 

 

• To communicate the Vision. 

 

• Provide great/exceptional customer service. 

 

• Clear, consistent, defined responsibilities. 

 

• Flexible. 

 

• Understanding of your role and responsibilities. 

 

 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

20 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council 

Leadership Philosophy 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota will lead by… 

• Providing the facts. 

• Seeking and gaining understanding of the problems. 

• Listening, asking, seeking information and deciding. 

• Coming together for the greater good – compromising 

and building consensus. 

• Toward a common goal – betterment of 

Navasota. 

• Finding a win/win for all. 

• Building consensus. 

• Picking your wins carefully. 

• Not being afraid to admit you are wrong and changing 

your mind. 

• Being patient. 

• Being humble – not prideful or egotistical. 

• Being passionate about our city, but not dictatorial. 

• Being brave for our city. 

• Showing respect and being respectful of others. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

21 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council 

Communication Philosophy 

The City Council of the City of Navasota will 

communicate by… 

• Effectively with citizens, each other and staff… 

• Concisely. 

• Clearly. 

• Completely. 

• Seek and allow responses. 

• Seek to understand. 

• Take the time to explain the issue and resolution to 

each other and to citizens. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

22 

  

City of Navasota 

City Council and Staff 

Expectations 

 

Council expects the following of each other… 

• Remember we all work for the citizens – Council and 

staff alike. 

• Set the table for the citizens on agenda items – fill in 

the gaps of knowledge for them. 

• Follow the process. 

• Be willing to slow the process down. 

• Respect each other and their opinions. 

• Be honest. 

• Be consistent. 

• Do your homework. 

• Be vulnerable – admit you do not know everything.  

• Be willing to learn. 

• Don’t take the issue personally 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

23 

City of Navasota 

City Council and Staff 

Expectations 

Council expects the following of staff… 
• Set the table to explain agenda items for Council and citizens. 

• Be clear and timely in the information flow to Council – 

understanding and responding to individual council members in the 

way that communicates best to them. 

• Don’t take it personally. 

• Provide the full picture – the good, the bad, and the ugly. 

• Have patience. 

• Know your lane and stay in it. 

• Understand the chain-of-command. 
 

(It was noted that the City Council and staff should all have and respond to the same 

expectations.) 

 

Staff expects Council to (as defined by Council 

members themselves) … 
• Don’t play the “gotcha” game with staff. 

• Have an understanding of staff, their role. 

• Ask questions and don’t assume. 

• Have patience. 

• Be fair. 

• Listen to staff. 

• Be respectful to staff. 

• Seek information on what council can do to help the staff succeed. 

• Seriously consider their recommendations. 

• Attempt to solve the problems that are presented. 

• Give them clear direction. 

• Remember that staff is working for the citizens, as well as the 

Council. 

• Don’t put undue pressure on staff. 

• Follow the chain-of-command. 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

24 

City of Navasota  

 

Strategic 

 

Areas of Emphasis 
 

 

• Governance 
o Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota follows established 

rules of governance that promote civil discourse, consistent and 

predictable deliberation and exemplary action. 

 

• Economic Development 
o Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will promote a strong 

and diverse economy that strengthens the local sales tax and 

property tax base while also contributing to a high quality of 

life. 

 

• Image/Communication 
o Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will proactively work 

to provide accurate, timely communications to the citizens and 

improve the image of the community. 

 

• Infrastructure 
o Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will provide excellent 

infrastructure and facilities that meets the needs of the 

citizens and businesses, and staff. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

25 

Area of Emphasis 
 

Governance 

 
Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota follows established rules of 

governance that promote civil discourse, consistent and predictable 

deliberation and exemplary action. 

 

Initiatives: 

 

• Establish a program to encourage more participation in 

Navasota government. 

o Establish and implement leadership academies. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ academy. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ police academy. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ fire academy. 

o Improve communication and strategic alignment 

between Council and all committees. 

 

• Establish an employee retention strategy. 

o Identify and promote the work culture, benefits of the 

city. 

o Promote the community and organizational culture. 

o Explore housing incentives to live and work in 

Navasota and attract new employees. 

o Cast a wider net for employees. 

o Explore opportunities for providing employee benefits 

that incentivize employment and retention. 

 

• Explore opportunity for a full-time grant writer. 

 

• Provide a clear sense of direction to all boards related to 

economic development. 

o Establish an Economic Development Strategy with the NEDC 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

26 

Area of Emphasis 

 

Economic Development 
 

Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will promote a strong and diverse 

economy that strengthens the local sales tax and property tax base while 

also contributing to a high quality of life. 

 

 

Initiatives 

 
 

• Establish a partnership with NISD, Blinn, TAMU and other 

institutions to enhance the economic development process. 

 

• Seek out grant opportunities. 

 

o Grants from EDA. 

 

• Enhance the marketing of Navasota 

o Marketing to fulfill housing needs. 

o Marketing of lower utility costs compared to other areas. 

o Marketing location and proximity to major metro areas in the 

state. 

 

• Seek partners to improve local health and social service providers. 

o Explore health authority with county. 

o Explore partnership with St. Joseph’s healthcare system. 

o Recruit health provider specialists (optometrists and medical 

providers) 

 

• Enhance strategic retail recruitment 

o Continue to partner with Retail Coach. 

o Attend recruitment conferences (industry, retail, restaurants, 

etc.) 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

27 

 

Area of Emphasis 
 

Image/Communications 

 
Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will proactively work to provide 

accurate, timely communications to the citizens and improve the image of 

the community. 

 

 

Initiatives 

 
• Improve the perception and image of Navasota. 

o Establish a positive campaign to promote Navasota. 

▪ Prepare both an in-person and digital message. 

o Identify target audiences. 

▪ Attend realtor conferences to tell the Navasota story. 

▪ Utilize citizens’ academies (see Governance). 

▪ Explore use of Town Hall meetings – in-person and 

virtual. 

 

• Establish a program to educate ISD students about local 

government. 

o Sponsor a job shadowing program for students in the city. 

 

• Improve communication in general with the public (Note: moved 

from Governance) 

o Be deliberate about creating buy-in from citizens.  

▪ Inform, educate and cast the vision 

o Prepare and implement a communication protocol. 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

28 

 

Area of Emphasis 
 

Infrastructure 

 
Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will provide excellent 

infrastructure and facilities that meets the needs of the citizens and 

businesses, and staff. 

 

 

Initiatives 

 
• Prepare a plan for construction of an elevated grade crossing over 

the railroad tracks. 

o Identify location and right of way needs for the crossing. 

o Establish costs to city to accommodate the crossing. 

o Identify land for a substation for fire and animal control. 

o Establish contact and conversation with the railroad 

 

• Prepare a capital improvements plan and program for needed 

city infrastructure. 

o Improve aging infrastructure. 

o Improve aging and inadequate facilities. 

o Expand parks, trails and bike paths. 

o Identify funding sources – bonds, grants, etc. 

 

• Create additional opportunity for social and family amenities. 

o Create additional sports facilities. 

o Make park improvements – trails, bike paths, etc. 

 

• Identify and plan for needed improvements to the community’s 

internet system. 
o Identify and review the existing systems available to the City 

▪ BVCOG Fiber Loop 

▪ Midsouth Synergies 

▪ Other 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

29 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

1 

 

 
 

 

 



Vision Element #1 

Governance 

 
Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota follows established rules of governance that promote civil discourse, consistent and predictable deliberation and exemplary action. 

 

Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

1.1 Establish a 

program to 

encourage 

more 

participation in 

Navasota 

government. 

1.1.1 Establish and implement leadership 

academies. 

 

• Re-implement a citizens’ academy. 

• Establish a citizens’ police academy. 

• Establish a citizens’ fire academy 

 

 X 

X 

X 

  

Brad 

Stafford 

 

 

 

 

 

• Hold town hall meetings with citizens in 

neighborhoods and restaurants to discuss City 

operations and governance. 

• Present organizational environment to the community 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

X 

 

• Grilling Stafford 

• Monday of City Council meetings: partner with Willy 

98.7 and Navasota Examiner to go over upcoming City 

Council Agenda. (also Facebook Live) 

 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

 

  

 

1.1.2 Provide a clear sense of director to 

all boards 
• Organize a volunteer luncheon for Boards & 

Commissions volunteers 

• Joint meeting with all boards/commissions for 

direction/legal training and Roberts rules. 

• Bring strategic planning and comprehensive planning 

documents to NEDC for approval 

• Recruit members who align with City Council 

• Improve communication and strategic alignment 

between Council and all committees. 

• Inform all communication & comp plan updates to all 

boards 

• Staff to facilitate strategic plan for economic 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

  



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

development corporation 

 

 

 

X 

  1.1.3 Establish a volunteer appreciation 

program   
• Organize a short ceremony for volunteers around the 

city (ex: Blue Santa, Trash Off) 

•  

 

X   Rayna  

1.2 Explore 

opportunity for 

a full-time 

grant writer. 

 

1.2.1 Continued professional development   

• Explore grant writing training opportunities 

• Continue partnership with BVCOG 

• Research other cities how grants are handled 

 

  

X 

X 

X 

  

 

Rayna 

Willenbrink  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vision Element # 2 



Economic Development 
 

Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will promote a strong and diverse economy that strengthens the local sales tax and property tax base while also contributing to a high 

quality of life. 

 

Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

2.1 Establish a 

partnership 

with NISD, 

Blinn, TAMU 

and other 

institutions to 

enhance the 

economic 

development 

process. 

 

2.1.1 Pursue grants from EDA. 

 
• Continue partnership with BVCOG for information 

on EDA grants 

• Continue relationship with Grantworks 

• Continue TEDC membership for resources on EDA 

grants 

• Explore new partnerships 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

  

 

Rayna 

2.1.2 Develop workforce programs • Explore partnerships with NISD 

• Continue partnership Chamber & CETA 

• Explore opportunities with the SBDC 

• Continue partnership with Bush School/TAMU 

• Reach out to BVCOG for funding opportunities 

• Research Texas Workforce Commission 

opportunities 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

 

X 

 

2.2 Enhance the 

marketing of 

Navasota. 

 

2.2.1 Marketing to fulfill housing needs. 

 
• Show housing growth to demonstrate demand. 

• Establish a permit/fee waiver program 

• Utilize NEDC website to highlight utility costs and 

location 

• Navasota Economic Development corporation 

Featured on the Navasota.gov home page 

  

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

X 

  

 

Madison 2.2.2 Marketing of lower utility costs 

compared to other areas. 

 

2.2.3 Marketing location and proximity to 

major metro areas in the state. 

 

2.3 Seek partners 

to improve 

local health 

and social 

2.3.1 Explore health authority with county. 

 
• Improve relationship with county and cities within 

the county 

• Continue to meet with the county this past year about 

this partnership but their level of interest currently 

 

 

X 

 

 X  

 

Rayna 



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

service 

providers. 

 

not very high.  

• Continue to explore other avenues to recruit and 

establish a local public health authority and possibly 

a heath inspections office. 

• Possible partnering with other cities in the county 

 

 

X 

 

 

X 

2.3.2 Establish Health Inspector  • Establish Policy  

• Appoint and train inspector 

  X 

X 

2.3.3 Explore partnership with St. Joseph’s 

healthcare system. 

 

• Add health care recruitment to the regional (retail) 

recruitment project 

  X 

2.3.4 Recruit health provider specialists 

(optometrists and medical providers) 

 

2.4 Enhance 

strategic retail 

recruitment. 

 

2.4.1 Continue to partner with Retail Coach. 

 
• Conduct community surveys to see what citizens 

wish lists are 

• Regional retail recruitment project 

 

 

Ongoing 

X   

 

Rayna 2.4.2 Attend recruitment conferences 

(industry, retail, restaurants, etc.) 

 

  2.4.3 Downtown Assessment • Reach out to Texas Downtown Association for a 

downtown assessment 

• Explore marketing strategies 

• Partnership with SBDC 

X 

 

X 

X 

   

 

 

 

Vision Element # 3 



Image/Communication 
 

Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will proactively work to provide accurate, timely communications to the citizens and improve the image of the community. 

 

Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

3.1 Improve the 

perception and 

image of 

Navasota. 

 

3.1.1 Establish a positive campaign to promote 

Navasota. 

 

• Prepare both an in-person and digital message. 

• Positive short videos about ongoing projects 

• Create a new branding campaign 

• Expand partnership with NISD 

 X 

X 

X 

X 

  

 

Madison 

3.1.2 Identify target audiences to effectively 

recruit new citizens while improving 

community pride. 

 

• Attend realtor conferences to tell the Navasota story. 

• Utilize citizens’ academies (see Governance). 

• Explore use of Town Hall meetings – in-person and 

virtual. 

• Utilize all methods of communication with the public; 

i.e. Grilling Stafford, trails town hall meetings, agenda 

briefings with local media, Navigate Navasota app 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

X 

X 

X 

 

3.2 Establish a 

program to 

educate ISD 

students about 

local 

government. 

 

3.2.1 Re-establish an internship/sponsor a job 

shadowing program for students in the 

city. 

 

• Co-op student to assist with administrative services for 

all departments with 15-20 hours beginning with a 

minimum wage of $7.25. 

• Speak with the co-op class  

• Both high school and college  

 X 

 

 

X 

X 

  

 

Peggy  

& Shawn 

3.3 Improve 

communication 

in general with 

the public. 

3.3.1 Be deliberate about creating buy-in from 

citizens. 
• Inform, educate and cast the vision. 

• Advertise City Council meetings in the paper 

($1,872/year), on the radio, yard signs, banners 

 

X 

X 

   

 

Madison 

3.3.2 Prepare and implement a communication 

protocol. 

• Explore new advertising techniques, i.e. Navigate Navasota 

app, CTY advertisement, Facebook events for all meetings 

•  Explore communication methods for Boards & 

Commissions, i.e. post all agendas on Facebook event 

 X 

 

 

X 

 



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

• All boards give regular updates at City Council meetings 

 
X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vision Element # 4 

Infrastructure 
 

Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will provide excellent infrastructure and facilities that meets the needs of the citizens and businesses, and staff. 



 

Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

4.1 Prepare a 

plan for 

construction 

of an elevated 

grade crossing 

over the 

railroad 

tracks. 

 

4.1.1 Identify location and right of way needs for the 

crossing. 

 

• Thorough fare plan completion 

and implementation 

 

 X   

 

Jose 

& 

Lupe 
4.1.2 Establish costs to city to accommodate the crossing. 

 
• Compile land acquisition costs per thorough 

fare plan design 

• Obtain estimate cost proposals for  

engineering and construction 

 

  X 

 

X 

4.2 

 

Prepare a 

capital 

improvements 

plan and 

program for 

needed city 

infrastructure. 

 

4.2.1 Improve aging infrastructure. 

 

 

Phase one: FY22 

Phase two: FY24 

 

• CIP Bring in a consultant to help formalize the 

plan 

o Update water modeling  

o Consultant to model Gas system and 

Wastewater system 

o Present CIP to Finance Dept. to plan 

for funding options. 

o Streets and Storm water evaluations 

and priorities  

o Replace/repair gas regulator stations 

• Complete phase 1 of CIP 

• Begin phase 2 of CIP 

• Fire hydrant repair/replacement 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

X 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

Jeff 

&  

Jose  

4.2.2 Improve aging and inadequate facilities. 

 
• Create a facilities master plan 

o Hire Consultant  

• Replace or improve animal shelter and vehicle 

services 

• Sell existing warehouse and build a new one 

• Replace the current primary fire station and 

EOC at the South LaSalle location.  

• Explore the possibility of a second fire 

station/public safety facility at Hwy 

  X 

 

X 

 

X 

X 

 

X 

 

 



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

105/Fairway Dr. because of the continued 

growth and expansion of the city and the 

delayed responses due to train traffic 

• Valve and other mechanical equipment 

replacement at wastewater plant 

• Look at alternative disinfectant treatment 

methods 

 

 

 

X 

 

X 

4.2.4 Identify funding sources – bonds, grants, etc. • We currently are working with 2020 Capital 

Improvement Bond.   

• We are working towards doing a bond every 2 

years for CIP 

• USDA loan 

• Add gas capital improvement fee to monthly 

billing. 

• Funding from American Rescue Plan  

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

X 

 

X 

  

4.3 Create 

additional 

opportunity 

for social and 

family 

amenities. 

 

4.3.1 Create additional sports facilities. 

 

• Identify most desired facilities 

• Identify possible locations 

• Land acquisition 

• Identify funding mechanism 

• Design facilities  

• Obtain bids/pricing on new facilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

 X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

 

 

Colton 

4.3.3 Make park improvements – trails, bike paths, etc. 

 

• Adjust city ordinance on parkland dedication 

to allow developers to contribute directly to 

ongoing projects 

• Develop community programs that improve 

parks 

• Identify areas of greatest need 

• Obtain bids/pricing on improvements 



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

• Navasota Sidewalk and Trails plan. 

4.4 Identify and 

plan for 

needed 

improvements 

to the 

community’s 

internet 

system. 

 

4.4.1 Identify and review the existing systems available and 

options to the City 

 

• Facilitate BVCOG partnerships with local ISP 

suppliers to improve speeds in underserved 

areas. 

• Encourage/ Incentivize Midsouth Synergy 

expansion into town via City ROW/Easements 

• Research other ISP options available. 

  X 

 

 

X 

 

X 

 

 

Lupe 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vision Element # 5 

Organizational Excellence 
 

Guiding Principle:  *Ron will update 



 

5.1 Establish an 

employee 

retention 

strategy. 

 

5.1.1 Identify and promote the work culture, 

benefits of the city. 

 

• Promote teamwork aspect of our culture, there are no 

islands everyone works together in some form or 

fashion. 

Hiring Process: 

• Streamline our online HR system 

o Job search & application process  

o Dependable Human Resource Information 

System software 

 

• Update both Incode and Internet system  
          

• Use of Social media to find candidates (i.e. Linkedin, 

Indeed) 
 

• Job boards at colleges and career fairs 

• Create a Referral Program with employee incentives  
 

• Create city parameter for job searches  
 

• Continued use of onboard process 

• Create formal policy hiring practices 

 

Offer competitive salary and benefits: 

• Contact other Cities (population of 5-10K) and 

surrounding industries/business (Trinity, etc.) to make 

sure City is within similar pay range  

• Find strong benefit package (medical, dental, vision, 

life)   

Other Incentives: 

• Continue to make employee feel valued and 

appreciated 
▪  

Ongoing 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

 

 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Peggy 

Johnson 

 

Strategic Initiatives  Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Leader 



• Continue to offer career advancement opportunity 

(invest in employee-greater future with City) 

• Pay for course for training (all departments) 
 

• College tuition reimbursement 
 

• Safety bonuses (no accidents, etc.) Safety pins 

(providing a day off), Bonus day- annually 
 

• Hazardous duty pays (ex: working big storms, etc.) 
▪  

• Team outings/lunches (Spring/Fall) and Christmas 

Party- employee does not have to organize or work the 

event 

• Monetary (bonuses and raises) 

• Continue to Recognize: years of service with Plaque 

and bag of goodies.  At the end of the year employee 

shall receive gift card (money, dinner, coffee, spa) (5 

year increments) 
o  

• Hand written note (“thank you” “job well done”, etc.) 
o  

• Brag board: located front lobby with employee picture 

and award (ex: Rookie of the year, Employee of the 

month, etc.) 

• Discount on rental facilities for city employees  

• City owned workout facility to promote health  

• Utility incentives to promote employees to live in 

Navasota  

• Reconsider 20-year retirement package/insurance to 

the age of social security  

• Evaluate additional employees to complete project 

assignments  

• Evaluate incentives for succession planning in career 

development  

 
 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

X 

X 

 

X 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

X 

 

 

 



 

5.1.2 Promote the community and 

organizational environment  

 

• Video montage of all city events and city participation 

of employees 

• Clear and transparent communication 

• Create Cultural Diversity Awareness by reaching out 

to different segments of the City  

• Career Fair days 

Ongoing 

 

X 

X 

 

X 

 

  

5.1.3 Explore housing incentives to live and 

work in Navasota and attract new 

employees. 

 

• Partner with local realtors or Chamber to put together 

informational housing options package 
▪  

• Pay a portion of moving expenses into Navasota within 

the city limits 

 

X 

 

 

X 

  

  



 
 

AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 
 

FEBRUARY 10, 2022 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 01/27/2022 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Workshop with Planning and Zoning 

 
WELCOMING RECEPTION FOR JASON WEEKS – FEBRUARY 14, 2022  
FROM 3:00 – 5:00 P.M. IN THE LOBBY PRIOR TO COUNCIL MEETING 

 

FEBRUARY 14, 2022 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 01/31/2022 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Update on Capital Improvements Project; (b) Recognition of Lessie    
    Arrington – 50 years of service; (c) Board and Commission update; and (d) Reports from  
    staff and City Council 
5. Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for January 2022; (b) Expenditures for January 2022; and  
    (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 991-22, hiring lawyers and experts for Entergy’s Rate  
    Increase 
6. Public hearing – Carver School – zoning change 
7. 1st reading of Ordinance No. – 992-22, Carver School – zoning change 
8. Development agreement with PA Smith Hotel 
9. Appointment to Boards and Commissions – KNB 
10.1st reading of Ordinance No. – 993-22, denying rate increase by Entergy 
11.Order calling the election for May 7, 2022 
12.Resolution No. 710-22, Contract for the May 7, 2022 City Election 
13.Adjourn 

 
 

FEBRUARY 28, 2022 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 02/14/2022 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Board and Commission update; and (b) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. 1st reading of Ordinance No. 994-22, establishing departments 
6. License agreement for weather radar 
7. Consent agenda: (a) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 992-22, Carver School – zoning change;  
    and (b) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 993-22, denying rate increase by Entergy 
8. Adjourn 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

MARCH 14, 2022 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 02/28/2022 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Update on Capital Improvements Project; (b) Board and Commission  
    update; and (c) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of February 2022; (b) Expenditures for the  
    month of February 2022; (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 994-22, establishing departments 
6. Adjourn 

 
 

MARCH 28, 2022 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 03/14/2022 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Board and Commission update; and (b) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. Adjourn 

 



                                    O F F I C E   O F   C O U R T   A D M I N I S T R A T I O N

                                             T E X A S   J U D I C A L   C O U N C I L

                                              Official Municipal Court Monthly Report

                     Month   January             Year   2022

           Municipal Court for the City of  NAVASOTA

           Presiding Judge   PATRICIA GRUNER

                      If new, date assumed office _________________

     Court Mailing Address   200 E. MCALPINE

                      City   NAVASOTA, TXZip    77868

              Phone Number   936-825-6268

                Fax Number   936-825-7280

      Court's Public Email   RJESSIE@NAVASOTATX.GOV

           Court's Website   http://WWW.NAVASOTATX.GOV

 

   THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE REFLECTION OF THE RECORDS OF THIS COURT.

   Prepared by _________________________________________________________________

          Date _____________________    Phone: (936) 825-6268

  PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM NO LATER THAN 20 DAYS FOLLOWING THE END OF THE MONTH REPORTED TO:

                         OFFICE OF COURT ADMINISTRATION

                                 P.O. BOX 12066

                                   AUSTIN, TX

                                   78711-2066

                             PHONE: (512) 463-1625

                              Fax: (512) 936-2423

http://WWW.NAVASOTATX.GOV


 2/04/2022 09:53 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    1

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CRIMINAL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------------------------------+-----------------------------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |              TRAFFIC              |            NON-TRAFFIC            |

MONTH  January     YEAR  2022                              |NON-PARKING|  PARKING  |  CITY ORD | PENAL CODE| STATE LAW |  CITY ORD |

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

1. Total Cases Pending First of Month:                     |        434|          0|         17|        256|         40|         97|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Active Cases                                         |         54|          0|          1|         17|         19|         12|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Inactive Cases                                       |        380|          0|         16|        239|         21|         85|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

2. New Cases Filed                                         |         25|          0|          0|          8|          0|          7|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

3. Cases Reactivated                                       |          3|          0|          0|          2|          1|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

4. All Other Cases Added                                   |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

5. Total Cases on Docket                                   |         82|          0|          1|         27|         20|         19|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

6. Dispositions Prior to Court Appearance or Trial:        |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Uncontested Dispositions                             |         12|          0|          1|          2|          0|          2|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Dismissed by Prosecution                             |          2|          0|          0|          0|          0|          1|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

7. Dispositions at Trial:                                  |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Convictions:                                         |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     1) Guilty Plea or Nolo Contendere                     |          2|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     2) By the Court                                       |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     3) By the Jury                                        |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Acquittals:                                          |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     1) By the Court                                       |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     2) By the Jury                                        |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   c. Dismissed by Prosecution                             |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+



 2/04/2022 09:53 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CRIMINAL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------------------------------+-----------------------------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |              TRAFFIC              |            NON-TRAFFIC            |

MONTH  January     YEAR  2022                              |NON-PARKING|  PARKING  |  CITY ORD | PENAL CODE| STATE LAW |  CITY ORD |

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

8. Compliance Dismissals:                                  |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. After Driver Safety Course                           |          4|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. After Deferred Disposition                           |          1|          0|          0|          0|          1|          1|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   c. After Teen Court                                     |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   d. After Tobacco Awareness Course                       |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|          0|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   e. After Treatment for Chemical Dependency              |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|          0|          0|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   f. After Proof of Financial Responsibility              |          2|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   g. All Other Transportation Code Dismissals             |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

9. All Other Dispositions                                  |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

10. Total Cases Disposed                                   |         23|          0|          1|          2|          1|          4|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

11. Cases Placed on Inactive Status                        |         21|          0|          0|         10|          1|          1|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

12. Total Cases Pending End of Month:                      |        436|          0|         16|        262|         39|        100|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |         38|          0|          0|         15|         18|         14|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |        398|          0|         16|        247|         21|         86|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

13. Show Cause Hearings Held                               |          5|          0|          0|          0|          1|          2|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

14. Cases Appealed:                                        |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    a. After Trial                                         |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    b. Without Trial                                       |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+



 2/04/2022 09:53 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    3

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CIVIL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |                |

MONTH  January     YEAR  2022                              |  TOTAL CASES   |

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

1.  Total Cases Pending First of Month:                    |               1|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |               1|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

2.  New Cases Filed                                        |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

3.  Cases Reactivated                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

4.  All Other Cases Added                                  |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

5.  Total Cases on Docket                                  |               1|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

6.  Uncontested Civil Fines or Penalties                   |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

7.  Default Judgments                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

8.  Agreed Judgments                                       |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

9.  Trial/Hearing by Judge/Hearing Officer                 |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

10. Trial by Jury                                          |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

11. Dismissed for Want of Prosecution                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

12. All Other Dispositions                                 |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

13. Total Cases Disposed                                   |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

14. Cases Placed on Inactive Status                        |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

15. Total Cases Pending End of Month:                      |               1|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |               1|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

16. Cases Appealed:                                        |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. After Trial                                         |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Without Trial                                       |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+



 2/04/2022 09:53 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    4

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

JUVENILE/MINOR ACTIVITY

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                                                  |                |

MONTH  January     YEAR  2022                                                    |     TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

1. Transportation Code Cases Filed                                               |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

2. Non-driving Alcoholic Beverage Code Cases Filed                               |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

3. Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol Cases Filed                            |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

4. Drug Paraphernalia Cases Filed                                                |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

5. Tobacco Cases Filed                                                           |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

6. Truancy Cases Filed                                                           |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

7. Education Code (Except Failure to Attend) Cases Filed                         |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

8. Violation of Local Daytime Curfew Ordinance Cases Filed                       |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

9. All Other Non-traffic Fine-only Cases Filed                                   |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

10. Transfer to Juvenile Court:                                                  |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  a. Mandatory Transfer                                                          |               0|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  b. Discretionary Transfer                                                      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

11. Accused of Contempt and Referred to Juvenile Court (Delinquent Conduct)      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

12. Held in Contempt by Criminal Court (Fined and/or Denied Driving Privileges)  |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

13. Juvenile Statement Magistrate Warning:                                       |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  a. Warnings Administered                                                       |               0|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  b. Statements Certified                                                        |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

14. Detention Hearings Held                                                      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

15. Orders for Non-secure Custody Issued                                         |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

16. Parent Contributing to Nonattendance Cases Filed                             |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------



 2/04/2022 09:53 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    5

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ADDITIONAL ACTIVITY

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                                                   |                | NUMBER REQUESTS |

MONTH  January     YEAR  2022                                                     |  NUMBER GIVEN  |   FOR COUNSEL   |

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

1. Magistrate Warnings:                                                           |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  a. Class C Misdemeanors                                                         |               0|XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  b. Class A and B Misdemeanors                                                   |               0|                0|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  c. Felonies                                                                     |               0|                0|

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|      TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

2. Arrest Warrants Issued:                                                                         |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Class C Misdemeanors                                                                          |               33|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Class A and B Misdemeanors                                                                    |                1|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  c. Felonies                                                                                      |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

3. Capiases Pro Fine Issued                                                                        |                5|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

4. Search Warrants Issued                                                                          |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

5. Warrants for Fire, Health and Code Inspections Filed                                            |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

6. Examining Trials Conducted                                                                      |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

7. Emergency Mental Health Hearings Held                                                           |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

8. Magistrate's Order for Emergency Protection Issued                                              |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

9. Magistrate's Orders for Ignition Interlock Device Issued                                        |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

10. All Other Magistrates's Orders Issued Requiring Conditions for Release on Bond                 |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

11. Drivers's License Denial, Revocation or Suspension Hearings Held                               |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

12. Disposition of Stolen Property Hearings Held                                                   |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

13. Peace Bond Hearings Held                                                                       |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------



 2/04/2022 09:53 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    6

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ADDITIONAL ACTIVITY

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|      TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

14. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Satisfied by Community Service:                            |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Partial Satisfaction                                                                          |                0|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Full Satisfaction                                                                             |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

15. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Satisfied by Jail Credit                                   |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

16. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Waived for Indigency                                       |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

17. Amount of Fines and Court Costs Waived for Indigency                                           |            $0.00|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

18. Fines, Court Costs and Other Amounts Collected:                                                |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Kept by City                                                                                  |        $4,500.52|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Remitted to State                                                                             |        $1,559.68|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  c. Total                                                                                         |        $6,060.20|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------



 2/04/2022 09:53 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    7

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

Run By:             rjessie

Report Type:        Summary

Date Range:          1/01/2022 -  1/31/2022

Finalize Report:    Yes

Correction:         No

      *** END OF REPORT ***



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5. AGENDA DATE: February 14,
2022

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: JW
 

Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon
with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is
necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City Councilmember,
in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda
for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of
the regular agenda. [City Council]

Consent Items are:

A. Consider approval on the minutes for the month of January
2022;

B. Consider approval on the expenditures for the month of
January 2022; and

C. Consider approval on the second reading of Ordinance No. 991-
22, authorizing participation with Entergy Service Area Cities in
matters concerning Entergy Texas, Inc. at the Public Utility
Commission in 2022 and authorizing the hiring of lawyers and
rate experts.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
N/A
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



Staff recommends approval of the consent agenda items which
includes the minutes and expenditures for the month of January
2022 and the second reading of Ordinance No. 991-22,
authorizing participation with Entergy Service Area Cities in
matters concerning Entergy Texas, Inc. at the Public Utility
Commission in 2022 and authorizing the hiring of lawyers and
rate experts.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Minutes - 01/10/2022
2. Minutes - 01/12/2022
3. Minutes - 01/18/2022
4. Minutes - 01/24/2022
5. Expenditures for January 2022
6. Ordinance No. 991-22

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1643391079x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1644244044x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1643391126x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1643391154x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1643747037x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1643391318x_at.pdf


MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 10, 2022 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City 
Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., 
Navasota, Texas on the above date with the following being present: 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Jason Weeks, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 
Cary Bovey, Legal Counsel; Jennifer Reyna, Administrative Assistant; Lance Hall, 
Finance Director; Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director; Shawn Myatt, Police 
Chief/Assistant City Manager; Rayna Willenbrink, Economic Development Specialist; 
Jason Katkoski, Fire Chief/EMC; Jack Kelso, Building Inspector; Jose Coronilla, Director 
of Streets and Sanitation; Peggy Johnson, Director of Human Resources; Jessica Glass, 
Communications Operator; Jonathan Hadley, Police Officer; James Connell, Police 
Officer and Karolina Krozel, Police Officer. 
 
VISITORS: John McKay, Tim Wolff, John Henry, Connie Clements, David Aguilar, Mac 
Vaughn, Audrey Sauls, Philip Cox, Shon Mangum, Diana Westmoreland, Deborah 
Richardson, Terri Tates, Charles Young, Archie Sauls and Kyle Kacal. 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2.  Invocation was given by Mac Vaughn. The City Council, staff members and 
visitors then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas 
Flag. 
 
3. Remarks of visitors: Connie Clements addressed the City Council about the 
Crime Stoppers awards dinner on January 15, 2022 and announce the Grimes 
County Republican party candidate forum on January 16, 2022 and January 30, 
2022. 
 
Audrey Sauls read an open letter to the City Council. 
 
 



4. Staff report: 

 

a) Mayor Bert Miller introduced State Representative Kyle Kacal; 
 
b) Police Chief Shawn Myatt and Mayor Bert Miller introduced some new 
employees; 
 
(c) John Henry gave an update on the Capital Improvements Project; 
 
(d) Navasota Housing Authority Director Terri Tates and board member Diana 
Westmoreland gave an annual update; 
 
(e) Finance Director Lance Hall gave a Library update; 
 
(f)  Economic Development Specialist Rayna Willenbrink gave an EDC update; 
 
(g)  There was not an update on the Blue Santa event; 
 
(h)  There was not a Boards and Commission update; and 
 
(i)  Councilmembers and staff informed the audience about upcoming events. 
 
5.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the contract, with the noted   
changes, with Republic Services for solid waste collection for five years from   
January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2027, seconded by Councilmember Bernie 
Gessner and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
6.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance 
No. 988-22, amending Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.02 Technical and 
Construction Codes and Standards, of the City of Navasota Code of Ordinances, 
adopting 2021 International Building Codes, seconded by Councilmember Bernie 
Gessner and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
7.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the first reading of 
Ordinance No. 989-22, amending Chapter 5 Fire Prevention and Protection, 
Article 5.04 Fire Prevention Code, of the City of Navasota Code of Ordinances, 
adopting 2021 International Fire Codes, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz 
and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
8.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve Change Order No. 2 for 
the Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvement Project in the amount of 
$4,569.00, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each 
Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 



9.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to recommend the purchase of the 
software upgrade from Tyler Technologies for additional annual fees of 
$22,748.00, seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with each 
Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
10. Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve Resolution No. 707-22, 
designating the persons authorized to sign checks and authorizing designated 
persons to access bank accounts for certain purposes, seconded by 
Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the 
motion carried. 
 
11. Mayor Pro-Tem Bert Miller moved to authorize the seal bid method, for City-
owed property, with an appraisal completed and the cost built into the minimum 
price, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt and with each Councilmember 
voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
12.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the minutes and 
expenditures for the month of December 2021, the second reading of Ordinance 
No. 985-21, approving a zoning change application submitted by James C 
Hassell for the properties located in the A0062 J Whitesides Abstract. The zoning 
change application requests to change the zoning from A/O: Agriculture/Open 
Space District to Pecan Lakes Estates Phase IV PUD, a planned unit 
development, for the development of a 63.55-acre single dwelling unit 
subdivision. The properties affected are legally described as A0062 J Whitesides, 
Tract 17-2, Acres 31.76, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 17, Acres 31.79 , located in 
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas; the second reading of Ordinance No. 986-21, 
amending Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.013 
Signs on Public Property, for the purpose of allowing and regulating signs on 
public property owned or controlled by a governmental entity; and the second 
reading of Ordinance No. 987-21, approving an application submitted by Serafin 
Estupinan to the City of Navasota requesting to abandon a twenty foot (20') 
public alleyway located in Block H of the Park Place Addition, in the City of 
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 
 

13.  An Executive Session was held in accordance with Section 551.072, Texas 
Government Code, deliberation regarding real property and discussion regarding 
the potential sale and/or value of City-owned property. The time was 7:08 p.m. 

 

14. An Executive Session was held in accordance with Section 551.086, Texas 
Government Code, Utility Competitive Matters, City of Navasota Gas Utility 
System, Natural Gas Supply Agreements, Arrangements and Associated Matters. 
The time was 7:09 p.m. 

 

15. The City Council reconvened in open session at 7:49 p.m. 

 



16. The City Council did not take any action on the sale of City-owed real 
property. 

 

17. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 7:51 p.m. 

_________________________ 

BERT MILER, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 

JANUARY 12, 2022 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the Navasota 

Center, located at 101 Stadium Drive, at 10:00 a.m., Navasota, Texas on the above 

date with the following being present: 

 

   Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2  

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

(Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 was absent) 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Jason Weeks, City Manager, Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 

Lance Hall, Finance Director, Jason Katkoski, Fire Chief/EMC; Rayna Willenbrink, 

Economic Development Specialist; Pat Gruner, Municipal Judge; Lupe Diosdado, 

Development Services Director and Shawn Myatt, Police Chief/Assistant City Manager. 

 

VISITORS:  Ray Aguilar, Jason Baker, Kathy Baldobino, Ethan Barcak, Scott Barrios, 

Blake Baumann, Marilyn Bettes, Melissa Bochat, Eddie Bosse, Tracy Brewer, Becky 

Brown, Brittany Chandler, Kenneth Chumchal, Theresa Clark, Connie Clements, 

Verenice Cortez, Ana Cosino, Michael Dearing, Jewel Dinkins, Angelle Dugas, James R. 

Evans, Ruby Evans, Joe Fauth, Sherry Fauth, Amy Fuller, Jon Fultz, Yolanda Fultz, 

Jennifer Fultz Jarvis, Sherry Gillespie, Christian Gonzales, Ronnie Gonzales, Kristine 

Gordon, Kenny Graves, Nicole Grille, Curt Harris, Kym Harris, Lillian Hayden, John 

Henry, Sara Hernandez, Bryan Jenkins, Kyle Kacal, David Lawrence, Luna Gabriel, 

Cecilia Maddox, Jo Marlow, Lindsey McGill, Gail Moore, Michael Moore, Eloise Morris, 

Jared Morris, Kristin Morris, Vonda Morrison, Jose Murillo, Michael Ogorchock, Jason 

Orlando, Michael Parks, Jared Patout, Amy Restivo, Robert Restivo, Janice Scheve, 

Stephen Scheve, Cody Sechelski, Suzanne Sechelski, Sivaji Senapathi, Marianne Shiflett, 

Meribeth Shimshack, Brad Stafford, Yata Stewart, Juan Tovar, Melissa Vezurk, Louis 

Vidotto, Nancy Vidotto, Barbara Walker, David Waters, Donna Weese, Patty Whitney, 

Erin Wilhite, Tim Wolff and Matt Ybarra.  

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

  

 1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 



 

2.  A quorum of the City Council attended the State of the City Address. 

 

3.  Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 12:30 p.m. 

 

 

                                      

                                                     ___________________________ 

                                                            BERT MILER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 

JANUARY 18, 2022 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 

Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, Texas on 

the above date with the following being present: 

 

   Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2  

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Jason Weeks, City Manager, Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Lance Hall, 

Finance Director, Jason Katkoski, Fire Chief/EMC; Rayna Willenbrink, Economic Development 

Specialist and Hung Mai, IT Specialist. 

 

VISITORS:  Connie Clements and Scott Isom. 

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

  

 1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2.  The Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas Flag 

was dispensed. 

 

3. Remarks of visitors:  None. 

 

4. A public hearing was held regarding establishing an Enterprise Zone Ordinance and 

the City of Navasota’s participation in the Texas Enterprise Zone Program pursuant to 

the Texas Enterprise Zone Act, Chapter 2303, Texas Government Code, providing 

incentives, designating a liaison for communication with interested parties, and 

nominating the qualified business known as Champion Home Builders, Inc. for the 

property located at 9601 Industrial Drive, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas  77868, 

legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 72, Acres 20.00, as an Enterprise Project to 

the Office of the Governor Economic Development and Tourism through the Economic 

Development Bank (“Bank”).  Mayor Bert Miller opened the public hearing at 6:01 p.m. 

 

Economic Development Specialist Rayna Willenbrink briefly went over the project as well 

as Scott Isom from Champion Home Builders, Inc.  With no further comments, Mayor 

Bert Miller closed the public hearing at 6:14 p.m. 

 



5.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 990-

22, authorizing the City of Navasota’s participation in the Texas Enterprise Zone 

Program pursuant to the Texas Enterprise Zone Act, Chapter 2303, Texas Government 

Code, providing incentives, designating a liaison for communication with interested 

parties, and nominating the qualified business known as Champion Home Builders, Inc. 

for the property located at 9601 Industrial Drive, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas  

77868, legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 72, Acres 20.00, as an Enterprise 

Project to the Office of the Governor Economic Development and Tourism through the 

Economic Development Bank (“Bank”), seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner and 

with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

6.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the consent agenda items which 

includes the second reading of Ordinance No. 988-22, amending Chapter 3 Building 

Regulations, Article3.02 Technical and Construction Codes and Standards, of the City of 

Navasota Code of Ordinances, adopting 2021 International Building Codes and 2020 

Electrical Code (NEC); and the second reading of Ordinance No. 989-22, amending 

Chapter 5 Fire Prevention and Protection, Article 5.04 Fire Prevention Code, of the City 

of Navasota Code of Ordinances, adopting 2021 International Fire Codes, seconded by 

Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

7.  Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 6:18 p.m. 

 

 

                                      

                                                     ___________________________ 

                                                            BERT MILER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 24, 2022 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 
Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, Texas 
on the above date with the following being present: 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

(Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 was absent) 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Jason Weeks, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Cary 
Bovey, Legal Counsel; Jennifer Reyna, Administrative Assistant; Lance Hall, Finance Director; 
Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director; Rayna Willenbrink, Economic Development 
Specialist and Michael Mize, Lieutenant. 
 
VISITORS: Mac Vaughn, Connie Clements, Michael Dearing and Deborah Richardson. 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2.  Invocation was given by Mac Vaughn. The City Council, staff members and visitors 
then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas Flag. 
 
3. Remarks of visitors: None. 
 

4. Staff report: 

 

a)  Lieutenant Michael Mize gave a report on the Blue Santa event; 
 
(b)  There was not a Boards and Commission update; and 
 
(c)  Councilmembers and staff informed the audience about upcoming events. 
 
5.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the bid award for the Automated 
Weather Observation System (AWOS) to Pappas Technologies, Inc. in the amount of 
$124,600 which includes the base bid of $107,000; Alternate Bid No. 1 for $14,000 for 
the Thunder Strike Alert and Alternate Bid No. 2 for $3,500 for the Ultra Sonic Wind 
Sensor, seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with each Councilmember 
present voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 



6.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to accept the Navasota Police Department’s 
2021 Racial Profiling Data Report and that the report be placed on file, seconded by 
Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt and with each Councilmember present voting AYE, the 
motion carried. 
 
7.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 
991-22, authorizing participation with Entergy Service Area Cities in matters concerning 
Entergy Texas, Inc. at the Public Utility Commission in 2022 and authorizing the hiring 
of lawyers and rate experts, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt and with each 
Councilmember present voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
8.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve Resolution No. 709-22, regarding 
a five-year lease purchase financing agreement with Government Capital Corporation 
for the purpose of procuring heavy equipment, vehicle and related equipment in the 
total amount of $1,033,020.60, seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with 
each Councilmember present voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
9.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to accept the City of Navasota’s quarterly 
investment report for December 2021, seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson 
and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
10.Mayor Bert Miller moved to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 990-22, 
authorizing the City of Navasota’s participation in the Texas Enterprise Zone Program 
pursuant to the Texas Enterprise Zone Act, Chapter 2303, Texas Government Code, 
providing incentives, designating a liaison for communication with interested parties, 
and nominating the qualified business known as Champion Home Builders, Inc., for the 
property located at 9601 Industrial Drive, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas 77868, 
legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 72, Acres 20.00, as an Enterprise Project to 
the Office of the Governor Economic Development & Tourism through the Economic 
Development Bank (“Bank”), seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with 
each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 

17. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 6:31 p.m. 

_________________________ 

BERT MILER, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 







































































































 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 991-22 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION WITH OTHER ENTERGY SERVICE 
AREA CITIES IN MATTERS CONCERNING ENTERGY TEXAS, INC. 
AT THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF TEXAS IN 2022; 
AUTHORIZING THE HIRING OF LAWYERS AND RATE EXPERTS; 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION TO THE FULL 
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW AT THE PUBLIC UTILITY 
COMMISSION OF TEXAS; FINDING THAT THE MEETING 
COMPLIES WITH THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT; AND DECLARING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

  
 WHEREAS, Cities have exclusive original jurisdiction over rates, operations, and 
services of an electric utility in areas in the municipality pursuant to Tex. Util. Code § 
33.001; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Cities have standing in each case before the Public Utility 
Commission of Texas that relates to an electric utility providing service in the 
municipality pursuant to Tex. Util. Code § 33.025; and 
 

WHEREAS, Entergy Texas, Inc. (“ETI” or “Company”) is expected to litigate rate 
change requests in various proceedings before the Public Utility Commission of Texas 
(“Commission”) or before municipalities in 2022, which may include (1) a base rate case, 
(2) rate proceedings or cost adjustments such as a transmission cost recovery rider, a 
distribution cost recovery rider, a generation cost recovery rider, energy efficiency cost 
recovery factor, or hurricane restoration cost or offset true-ups, (3) and various fuel cost 
refunds or surcharges and reconciliations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, ETI is expected to file a statement of intent to increase its base 
rates with municipalities and the Commission in 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, ETI is scheduled to file fuel factor proceedings at the Commission in 
February and August 2022, and may file other fuel proceedings to reconcile, refund, or 
surcharge fuel charges; and 
 

WHEREAS, ETI is expected to file its annual proceeding with the Commission to 
recover costs incurred in association with its Energy Efficiency Plan as well as reconcile 
past costs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Cities have the statutory right to set fair and reasonable rates for 
both the Company and customers within Cities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Cities are entitled to reimbursement by the utility of their reasonable 
rate case expenses to participate in cases that are deemed rate proceedings pursuant to 
Tex. Util. Code § 33.023. 
 
  



 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS, that: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City of Navasota shall participate with other Cities to 
intervene in ETI’s various rate filings related to the various fuel cost surcharges and 
reconciliations, any interim or incremental surcharge proceedings or surcharge 
adjustments, and for any base rate adjustment proceedings or cost of service 
adjustments on file with the Commission or with municipalities in 2022. 
 

SECTION 2. The City of Navasota employs the Lawton Law Firm P.C. to 
represent the City regarding the ETI rate matters before local regulatory authorities and 
the Commission and any court of law and authorizes counsel to employ rate experts as 
are recommended by the Cities’ Steering Committee to intervene in fuel or rate related 
proceedings at the Commission concerning ETI’s rates charged to Texas customers. 

 
 SECTION 3. All such actions shall be taken pursuant to the direction of the 
Cities’ Steering Committee. Cities’ Steering Committee shall have authority to retain rate 
consultants and lawyers. Cities’ Steering Committee shall direct the actions of Cities’ 
representatives in the above proceedings. The Steering Committee is directed to obtain 
reimbursement from ETI of all reasonable expenses associated with participation in said 
proceedings. 
 
 SECTION 4. The meeting at which this Ordinance was approved was in all 
things conducted in strict compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 551. 
 
 SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall be effective from and after the date of its 
passage. 
 
 PASSED by ___________ vote of the City Council of the City of 
Navasota, Texas, this 24th day of January 2022. 
 
                                   
                                                       THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 
      
 
 
     By: ________________________ 
                                                                  BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 



 3 

 
PASSED by ___________ vote of the City Council of the City of Navasota, 
Texas, this 14th day of February 2022. 
                                   
                                                   
                                                        THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 
      
 
 
     By: ________________________ 
                                                                BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6. AGENDA DATE: February 14,
2022

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: JW
 

Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving
public comment and testimony regarding a zoning change
application submitted by Mary Mable, representing the Navasota
George Washington Carver High School Alumni Association for the
property located at 1602 S La Salle, Navasota, Grimes County,
TX, 77868. The zoning change application requests to change the
zoning from PU: Public Use District to B-1: General Business
District, for the operation of a Commercial Day Care Use. The
property affected is legally described as S8700 - Woodward, Block
1 & 2, Acres 3.098. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director]
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:

Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director



City staff received a zoning change application submitted by Mary
Mable. The application requests changing the property located at
1602 South LaSalle, Navasota, Grimes County, TX, from PU:
Public Use District to B-1: General Business District. The proposed
zoning change would allow for the operation of a commercial day
care use. Commercial day cares are not listed as permitted uses
within the existing PU: Public Use District, so a zoning change is
necessary for issuance of a certificate of occupancy. City staff
mailed 56 public notice letters to property within 500 feet of the
affected property (State law only requires 200 feet). Staff has
only received informational inquiries in the days leading up to the
meeting from the surrounding property owners that received our
public hearing notification letter.

On Thursday January 27, 2022 the P&Z Commission held a public
hearing discussing the zoning change request. During the public
hearing, community members inquired about the affect the
proposed zoning change would have on the property’s tax
exemption status. Staff communicated that Grimes County
Appraisal District office has in the past confirmed property zoning
does not impact tax exemptions. Also, project representative,
Mary Mable confirmed an attorney is involved to avoid any
conflicts with the covenants/deeds and/or agreements with
Navasota Independent School District. Following the public
hearing the P&Z Commission voted unanimously recommending
approval of the proposed zoning change to City Council.

Public hearing opened at ______ p.m.

Public hearing closed at ______ p.m.

 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
N/A
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:



Staff recommends conducting a public hearing for the purpose of
receiving public comment and testimony regarding a zoning
change application submitted by Mary Mable, representing the
Navasota George Washington Carver High School Alumni
Association for the property located at 1602 S La Salle, Navasota,
Grimes County, TX, 77868. The zoning change application
requests to change the zoning from PU: Public Use District to B-1:
General Business District, for the operation of a Commercial Day
Care Use. The property affected is legally described as S8700 -
Woodward, Block 1 & 2, Acres 3.098.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Staff Report

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1643770751x_at.pdf


  

City of Navasota  
City Council  
Staff Report 

January 28, 2022 
 
 

 
Summary: 
City staff received a zoning change application submitted by Mary Mable. The application 
requests changing the property located at 1602 South LaSalle, Navasota, Grimes County, TX, 
from PU: Public Use District to B-1: General Business District. The proposed zoning change 
would allow for the operation of a commercial day care use. Commercial day cares are not 
listed as permitted uses within the existing PU: Public Use District, so a zoning change is 
necessary for issuance of a certificate of occupancy.  Staff has only received one informational 
inquiry in the days leading up to the meeting from the surrounding (56) property owners that 
received our public hearing notification letter.  
 
Planning & Zoning Recommendation: 
On Thursday January 27, 2022 the P&Z held a public hearing discussing the zoning change 
request. During the public hearing community members inquired about the affect the proposed 
zoning change would have on the property’s tax exemption status. Staff communicated the 
Grimes county’s appraisal office has in the past confirmed property zoning does not impact tax 
exemptions. Project representative Mary Mable also confirmed an attorney is involved to avoid 
any conflicts with the covenants/deeds and or agreements with Navasota Independent School 
District. Following the public hearing the P&Z voted unanimously recommending approval of 
the proposed zoning change to City Council. 
 
Comprehensive Plan 2015-2025 Relation: 
 

Encourage and promote service. 
Ongoing commitments to serving the community’s 
most vulnerable residents, its elderly and children, 
fulfill one of Navasota’s key missions. The City can 
serve a prominent role in identifying populations in 
need of assistance and create opportunities that link 
volunteers and the charitable community with these 
populations. Whether through ride-sharing, food 
programs, “buddy” systems, tutoring, or any number 
of other efforts, Navasota exists as an important 
clearinghouse and match-maker between those in 
need and those who seek to help. Pg. 25 – Livability  
 

Property Information: 
PID: R36200 
Legal Description: S8700 - Woodward, BLOCK 1& 2, ACRES 3.098, (CARVER SCHOOL) 



Owner: AVASOTA GEORGE WASHINGTON CARVER HIGH SCHOOL ALUMNI ASSN 
Address: 1602 S LA SALLE, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
Zoning: PU 
Current Land Use: Educational Facility\Offices 
Proposed Use: Commercial Day Care\Educational Facility\Offices 
Applicant\Project Rep: Mary Mable 

Aerial & Street view: 

  

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=navasotaset&collection=navasota&doccode=z2Code_z20000844


 

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7. AGENDA DATE: February 14,
2022

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: JW
 

Presentation, discussion, and possible action on the first
reading of Ordinance No. 992-22, regarding a zoning change
application submitted by Mary Mable, representing the Navasota
George Washington Carver High School Alumni Association for the
property located at 1602 S La Salle, Navasota, Grimes County,
TX, 77868. The zoning change application requests to change the
zoning from PU: Public Use District to B-1: General Business
District, for the operation of a Commercial Day Care Use. The
property affected is legally described as S8700 - Woodward, Block
1 & 2, Acres 3.098.[Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director]
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:

Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director



City staff received a zoning change application submitted by Mary
Mable. The application requests changing the property located at
1602 South LaSalle, Navasota, Grimes County, TX, from PU:
Public Use District to B-1: General Business District. The proposed
zoning change would allow for the operation of a commercial day
care use. Commercial day cares are not listed as permitted uses
within the existing PU: Public Use District, so a zoning change is
necessary for issuance of a certificate of occupancy. City staff
mailed 56 public notice letters to property within 500 feet of the
affected property (State law only requires 200 feet). Staff has
only received informational inquiries in the days leading up to the
meeting from the surrounding property owners that received our
public hearing notification letter.

On Thursday January 27, 2022 the P&Z Commission held a public
hearing discussing the zoning change request. During the public
hearing community members inquired about the affect the
proposed zoning change would have on the property’s tax
exemption status. Staff communicated that Grimes County
Appraisal District office has in the past confirmed property zoning
does not impact tax exemptions. Also, project representative,
Mary Mable confirmed an attorney is involved to avoid any
conflicts with the covenants/deeds and or agreements with
Navasota Independent School District. Following the public
hearing the P&Z Commission voted unanimously
recommending approval of the proposed zoning change to
City Council.

 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
N/A
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:



The Planning & Zoning Commission recommends approving the
first reading of Ordinance No. 992-22, regarding a zoning change
application submitted by Mary Mable, representing the Navasota
George Washington Carver High School Alumni Association for the
property located at 1602 S La Salle, Navasota, Grimes County,
TX, 77868. The zoning change application requests to change the
zoning from PU: Public Use District to B-1: General Business
District, for the operation of a Commercial Day Care Use. The
property affected is legally described as S8700 - Woodward, Block
1 & 2, Acres 3.098.

*If City Council decides to deny the request a super
majority of 4 out of 5 council members must vote to deny
the proposed zoning change.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 992-22

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1643390570x_at.pdf


ORDINANCE NO. 992-22 
 

AN ORDINANCE REZONING THE PROPERTY LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS S8700 - 
WOODWARD, BLOCK 1 & 2, ACRES 3.098, (CARVER SCHOOL), FROM PU: 
PUBLIC USE DISTRICT TO B-1: GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, PROVIDING 
FOR A SEVERABILIY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, on the 7th of January, 2022, Mary Mable representing the Navasota George 
Washington Carver High School Alumni Association, filed a petition requesting the 
rezoning of the property legally described as S8700 - Woodward, Block 1 & 2, Acres 
3.098, from PU: Public Use District, to B-1: General Business District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the rezoning request is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan of the 
City of Navasota; and 
 
WHEREAS, on the 27th of January, 2022, a public hearing was held before the 
Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Navasota, a quorum being present on 
the occasion and said matter of rezoning being part of the agenda for said Commission 
meeting, an opportunity to present arguments for and against the proposed rezoning 
was held; and 
 
WHEREAS, the property is shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein for all purposes pertinent; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends to the City Council that 
best interest and the benefit of the residents of the City of Navasota, that the property 
legally described as S8700 - Woodward, Block 1 & 2, Acres 3.098, be rezoned as B-1: 
General Business District; and 
 
WHEREAS, on the 14th day of February, 2022, a public hearing was held before the 
Navasota City Council, a quorum being present on the occasion and said matter of 
rezoning being part of the agenda, an opportunity to present arguments for and against 
the proposed rezoning was held; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. The zoning change request is hereby granted for the property legally 
described as S8700 - Woodward, Block 1 & 2, Acres 3.098, from PU: Public Use District 
to B-1: General Business District and such zoning shall be entered on the Official Zoning 
Map of the City of Navasota. Unless otherwise provided for or modified herein, the 
property legally described shall conform to the provisions of the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance and all other applicable ordinances. 
 



 

 
SECTION 2. That if any section, subsection, word, sentence or phrase of this 
ordinance is held invalid, it shall not affect the remaining parts of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 3. That this ordinance shall be effective upon final reading and approval of 
this ordinance. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FIRST READING THIS 14th DAY OF 
FEBRUARY 2022. 
 
 
                                                                     _________________________ 
                                                                          BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING THIS 28th DAY OF 
FEBRUARY 2022. 
 
 
 
                                                                       ______________________ 
                                                                            BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

 
 

R36200 - AS S8700 - WOODWARD, BLOCK 1 & 2, ACRES 3.098 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 8. AGENDA DATE: February 14,
2022

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: JW
 

Presentation, discussion, and possible action on a
development agreement with PA Smith Hotel, LLC for the
development of sidewalks matching the downtown streetscapes in
the 100 block of West Holland Street & 200 Block of South Tenth
Street, located in Navasota, Grimes County, TX. [Lupe Diosdado,
Development Services Director]
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
PA Smith Hotel, LLC, Is planning on constructing a private valet
parking lot to accommodate hotel guests on the property located
at the north east corner of South Tenth Street and West Holland
Street intersection.

The proposed parking lot is located in the Central Business District
which requires sidewalks to be built along all public rights of ways.
The City has undertaken downtown streetscape projects including
replacement of sidewalks with pavers over the past seven (7)
years. The City has requested the proposed project include
sidewalks that match the streetscape projects and other
downtown improvements. PA Smith Hotel, LLC, owner of the
property has requested financial assistance to cover the cost of
the sidewalk installation. A copy of the development agreement is
attached for your review and consideration.

The proposed development agreement outlines the city will re-
imburse PA Smith Hotel, LLC, $82,375 within six (6) months of
project completion and City Council acceptance of public
improvements including but not limited to sidewalks, street lamps,
and planter boxes.

Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director



 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
$82,375 - to be paid within six (6) months of project completion
and public improvement acceptance.
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approving the development agreement with PA
Smith Hotel, LLC for the development of sidewalks matching the
downtown streetscapes in the 100 block of West Holland Street &
200 Block of South Tenth Street, located in Navasota, Grimes
County, TX
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. P. A. Smith Development Agreement

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1644431072x_at.pdf


 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 

AND 

P. A. SMITH HOTEL, LLC 



 

 1 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

    § 

COUNTY OF GRIMES § 

 

This Development Agreement ("Agreement") is between the City of Navasota, 

Texas, a Texas Home-Rule Municipal Corporation (the "City") and P. A. SMITH HOTEL, 

LLC, a Texas limited liability company ("P. A. SMITH HOTEL").  In this Agreement, the 

City and P. A. SMITH HOTEL are sometimes individually referred to as a "Party" and 

collectively referred to as the "Parties." 

 

RECITALS 

 

P. A. SMITH HOTEL owns approximately 13,750 Sq. Ft. of land (H & TC RR 

ADDITION, BLOCK J, LOT 5 and Part of LOT 4 (S21') (the "Land"), currently located in 

the 200 Block of South Tenth Street, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. The Land is 

described as H & TC RR ADDITION, BLOCK J, LOT 5 and Part of LOT 4 (S21'), being 

further described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. P. 

A. SMITH HOTEL desires that the Project be governed by this Agreement. 

 

P. A. SMITH HOTEL intends to construct a new parking facility and other 

improvements on the Land, in accordance with the Site Plan, Building Plans, and other 

documents collectively attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein for all 

purposes; and in this Agreement, the Land as it will be developed by P. A. SMITH 

HOTEL, and the other improvements to be constructed and obligations to be performed by 

P. A. SMITH HOTEL, are sometimes referred to herein as the "Project.” 

 

P. A. SMITH HOTEL intends to make a significant investment in the construction 

of the Project improvements and associated equipment and infrastructure, including but not 

limited to the construction of sidewalk improvements in the Central Business District along 

the 200 Block of South Tenth Street  and the 100 Block of West Holland Street. 

 

The City desires that P. A. SMITH HOTEL install sidewalk improvements that are 

consistent with the design used in the recent City of Navasota Downtown streetscape 

improvement projects, said sidewalk improvements being more specifically described in 

Exhibit “B” attached hereto. 

 

P. A. SMITH HOTEL and the City wish to enter into this Agreement to encourage 

appropriate planning of the Project, provide for specific requirements of P. A. SMITH 

HOTEL and the City throughout the term of this Agreement, to provide for P. A. SMITH 

HOTEL’s commitment concerning the installation of sidewalk improvements that are 

consistent with the design used in the recent City of Navasota Downtown streetscape 

improvement projects for purposes of improving the Central Business District in such a 

manner that will benefit the public and the present and future residents of the City. 

 



 

 2 

The City is authorized by §380.001, et seq., Texas Local Government Code, to 

promote state and local economic development and to stimulate business and commercial 

activity within the City and surrounding area. The City has determined that a substantial 

economic benefit and the creation of new opportunities of employment will accrue to the 

City and the surrounding area if the Project and additional improvements to the Land and 

associated infrastructure are successfully developed by P. A. SMITH HOTEL. 

 

Therefore, for and in consideration of good and valuable consideration, the receipt 

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, including the agreements set forth 

below, the City and P. A. SMITH HOTEL agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE 1 

DEFINITIONS 

 

1.1 Definitions.  Unless the context or the usage of the particular word or phrase 

requires a different interpretation, in addition to terms defined elsewhere herein, the 

following terms and phrases shall have the meanings indicated below: 

 

Agreement:  This Development Agreement between the City of Navasota, Texas 

and P. A. SMITH HOTEL, LLC. 

 

 

Applicable Rules:  The City ordinances, codes, rules, regulations and official 

policies in effect as of the Vesting Date, which will be applicable to the development of the 

Land. 

 

City:  The City of Navasota, Texas, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation. 

 

City Manager:  The City Manager of the City of Navasota, Texas, or the City 

Manager’s designee. 

 

City Council:  The City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

 

City Engineer:  The Engineer for the City of Navasota, Texas. 

 

County:  Grimes County, Texas. 

 

Term:  The term of this Agreement, commencing on the Effective Date and 

continuing thereafter until each Party hereto satisfactorily performs its obligations as 

required by the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

Land:  Approximately 13,750 Sq. Ft. of land, currently situated inside the city limits 

of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. The Land is that tract or parcel of land 

described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 



 

 3 

P. A. SMITH HOTEL:  P. A. SMITH HOTEL, LLC, a Texas limited liability 

company,, and its successors and assigns under this Agreement. 

 

Project:  The Land, and existing and future improvements thereto, as it will be 

developed under this Agreement, and the other improvements to be constructed and 

obligations to be performed by P. A. SMITH HOTEL pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

Vesting Date:  shall be the same date as the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE 2 

PUBLIC BENEFITS, INFRASTRUCTURE AND AMENITIES 

 

2.1  Orderly Growth.  The City desires that development within its corporate boundaries 

occur in an orderly manner in order to protect the health, safety and welfare of its present 

and future citizens, protect property values and provide for the growth of the City's tax 

base.  This Agreement will benefit the City by facilitating the planned development of an 

appropriate area of the City's corporate boundaries, which will allow for thoughtful and 

high-quality planning, and the development of necessary sidewalk infrastructure. 

 

2.2 Environmental Protection.  P. A. SMITH HOTEL will comply with all federal, state 

and local natural resource laws and regulations, to the extent applicable, in existence at the 

time of the development and improvement of the Land. 

 
ARTICLE 3 

SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS  
 
3.1 Sidewalk Improvements by P. A. SMITH HOTEL.  Subject to Section 4.1 herein 

below, P. A. SMITH HOTEL shall be responsible for the design, engineering, construction 

and all other costs related to the installation of sidewalk improvements along  the 200 

Block of South Tenth Street and the 100 Block of West  Holland Street bordering P. A. 

SMITH HOTEL’S property located in the Central Business District, that are consistent 

with the design used in the recent City of Navasota Downtown streetscape improvement 

projects, said sidewalk improvements being more specifically described in Exhibit “B” 

attached hereto. All design, engineering and construction shall be performed in accordance 

with the Applicable Rules and according to plans approved by the City.  
  

ARTICLE 4 

 ADDITIONAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES 

 

4.1 Within One Hundred Eighty (180) days after the City’s approval of and acceptance 

of the completed sidewalk improvements along  the 200 Block of South Tenth Street and 

100 Block of West Holland Street bordering P. A. SMITH HOTEL’S property, located in 

the Central Business District, that are consistent with the design used in the recent City of 

Navasota Downtown streetscape improvement projects, the City shall reimburse P. A. 

SMITH HOTEL for the actual costs incurred by P. A. SMITH HOTEL for the construction 

of said sidewalk improvements, not to exceed Eighty Two Thousand Three Hundred and 

Seventy Five Thousand Dollars, ($82,375), in the form of a grant pursuant to Chapter 380, 



 

 4 

Texas Local Government Code. The amount paid to P. A. SMITH HOTEL pursuant to this 

Section 4.1 shall not exceed Eighty Two Thousand Three Hundred and Seventy Five 

Thousand Dollars No/100 Dollars ($82,375). Payments under this provision shall be made 

only to P. A. SMITH HOTEL, or any other party that, by written instrument, only upon the 

written approval of the City, expressly assumes the obligations imposed on P. A. SMITH 

HOTEL by this Agreement. 

 

4.2 P. A. SMITH HOTEL agrees that the sidewalk improvements will be consistent 

with the recent City of Navasota Downtown streetscape improvement projects, and the 

parking facility will be constructed on the Land in accordance with the site and 

development standards of the Applicable Rules, and in accordance with the plans attached 

hereto as Exhibit “B.”  

 

 

ARTICLE 5 

PLATS, BUILDING CODES, BUILDING PERMITS, INSPECTION 

 

 

5.1 Construction Inspection.  The City shall have the right, from time to time, to inspect 

the construction of the Project and any other public improvements for the purpose of 

identifying any improvements that are being constructed in violation of the Applicable 

Rules, Building Code and/or this Agreement.  All inspections shall be performed by an 

inspector selected by the City and all inspection results shall be in writing. P. A. SMITH 

HOTEL shall be responsible for payment of the inspection fees as provided for in the 

Applicable Rules. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 6 

OBLIGATIONS NOT DEBT 

 

The City acknowledges and agrees that the obligations created by this Agreement shall not 

constitute “debt” and shall be paid out of current revenues of the City; or in the alternative, 

shall be paid out of a specified fund, said fund being in the immediate control of the City 

and being in an amount sufficient to satisfy the City’s obligations created herein; or further 

in the alternative, that sufficient provision and tax levy has been made by the City to create 

an interest and sinking fund adequate to pay at least two percent (2%) of the principal and 

any interest due each year. 

ARTICLE 7 

LAND DEVELOPMENT 

 

7.1 Governing Regulations.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the City 

ordinances, codes, rules, regulations and official policies applicable to the development of 

the Land during the term of this Agreement will be those City ordinances, building and 

construction codes, other codes, rules, regulations and official policies (collectively, 

"Applicable Rules") in force and as interpreted by the City by policy or practice on the 



 

 5 

Vesting Date, as defined in Section 1.1 above.  No Applicable Rules adopted after the 

Vesting Date, whether by means of an ordinance, initiative, referendum, resolution, policy, 

order, or otherwise, are or will be applicable to the Project, unless otherwise provided in 

this Agreement or applicable state law, or the application is agreed to, in writing, by P. A. 

SMITH HOTEL and the City. For the term of this Agreement, the development and use of 

the Land will be controlled by the terms of this Agreement and the Applicable Rules.  If 

there is any conflict between the Applicable Rules and the terms of this Agreement, the 

terms of this Agreement will control. 

 

ARTICLE 9 

FEES; FISCAL SECURITY 

 

9.1 Fees. P. A. SMITH HOTEL agrees to timely pay any and all fees, costs, payments, 

set forth in the Applicable Rules, this Agreement, or otherwise required by law.  

ARTICLE 10 

TERM, AUTHORITY AND VESTING OF RIGHTS 

 

10.1 Term. 

 

10.1.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement will commence on the Effective Date 

and continue thereafter until each Party hereto satisfactorily performs its 

obligations as required by the provisions of this Agreement ("Term"), unless 

sooner terminated under this Agreement.   

 

10.1.2 Extensions. The Parties agree that neither the City nor P. A. SMITH 

HOTEL is under any obligation to renew this Agreement after the Term. 

 

10.1.3 Expiration.  After the Term and any extension, this Agreement will be of no 

further force and effect, except that termination will not affect any right or 

obligation arising from any provision surviving this Agreement as provided 

herein. 

 

10.1.4 Termination or Amendment.  This Agreement may be terminated or 

amended as to the Land at any time by mutual written consent of the City 

and P. A. SMITH HOTEL or may be terminated or amended only as to a 

portion of the Land by the mutual written consent of the City and owners of 

only the portion of the Land affected by the amendment or termination. 

 

10.2 Authority.  This Agreement is entered under the statutory authority of Chapter 51 and 

Chapter 380, Texas Local Government Code.  The Parties intend that this Agreement 

authorize certain land uses and development on the Land; provide for the development plans 

and regulations for the Land; and provide exceptions to certain ordinances and regulations; 

and provide other terms and consideration.  

 



 

 6 

10.3 Vesting of Rights.  As of the Vesting Date, P. A. SMITH HOTEL has initiated the 

subdivision and development permit process for the Project. The City agrees that, in 

accordance with Chapter 245, Texas Local Government Code, the City will consider the 

request for approval of any further approvals necessary for the Project based solely on the 

Applicable Rules, as may be modified by this Agreement. Further, the City agrees that, 

upon approval of this Agreement, P. A. SMITH HOTEL has vested authority to develop 

the Land in accordance with the Applicable Rules, as modified by any exceptions 

contained in this Agreement.   

 

10.4 Equivalent Substitute Obligation.  If either Party is unable to meet an obligation 

under this Agreement due to a court order invalidating all or a portion of this Agreement, 

preemptive state or federal law, an imminent and bona fide threat to public safety that 

prevents performance or requires different performance, changed circumstances or 

subsequent conditions that would legally excuse performance under this Agreement, or any 

other reason beyond the Party's reasonable and practical control, the Parties will cooperate 

to revise this Agreement to provide for an equivalent substitute right or obligation as 

similar in terms to the illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision as is possible and is legal, 

valid and enforceable, or other additional or modified rights or obligations that will most 

nearly preserve each Party's overall contractual benefit under this Agreement.  

 

10.5 Cooperation. The City and P. A. SMITH HOTEL each agree to execute such further 

documents or instruments as may be necessary to evidence their agreements hereunder. 

 

10.6 INDEMNIFICATION; LITIGATION.  TO THE EXTENT ALLOWED BY 

LAW, EACH PARTY AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE OTHER 

PARTY, ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, MEMBERS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, 

AGENTS AND VOLUNTEERS HARMLESS AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, 

LAWSUITS, JUDGMENTS, COSTS, LIENS, LOSSES, EXPENSES, FEES 

(INCLUDING ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS OF DEFENSE), PROCEEDINGS, 

ACTIONS, DEMANDS, CAUSES OF ACTION, LIABILITY AND SUITS OF ANY 

KIND AND NATURE, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PERSONAL 

INJURY (INCLUDING DEATH), PROPERTY DAMAGE, OR OTHER HARM 

FOR WHICH RECOVERY OF DAMAGES IS SOUGHT THAT IS 

PROXIMATELY CAUSED BY ANY WILLFUL OR NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR, 

OR OMISSION OF THE PARTY, ANY AGENT, OFFICER, DIRECTOR, 

REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR EMPLOYEE OF THE PARTY, WHILE IN THE 

EXERCISE OF PERFORMANCE OF THE RIGHTS OR DUTIES UNDER THIS 

AGREEMENT. THE INDEMNITY PROVIDED FOR IN THIS PARAGRAPH 

SHALL NOT APPLY TO ANY LIABILITY RESULTING FROM THE WILLFUL 

OR NEGLIGENT ACT OF CITY, ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, 

EMPLOYEES, AGENTS OR VOLUNTEERS, IN INSTANCES WHERE SUCH 

NEGLIGENT ACTS PROXIMATELY CAUSE PERSONAL INJURY, DEATH, OR 

PROPERTY DAMAGE. IN THE EVENT P. A. SMITH HOTEL AND CITY ARE 

FOUND JOINTLY LIABLE BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION, 

LIABILITY SHALL BE APPORTIONED COMPARATIVELY IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, WITHOUT, HOWEVER, 



 

 7 

WAIVING ANY GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY AVAILABLE TO CITY UNDER 

TEXAS LAW AND WITHOUT WAIVING ANY DEFENSES OF THE PARTIES 

UNDER TEXAS LAW. 

 

Each Party shall advise the other Party in writing within 24 hours of any claim or demand 

against the Party  related to or arising out of the Parties’ activities under this Agreement. 

 

The provisions of this Agreement are solely for the benefit of the Parties hereto and not 

intended to create or grant any rights, contractual or otherwise, to any other person or 

entity. In the event of any third party lawsuit or other claim relating to the validity of this 

Agreement or any actions taken by the Parties hereunder or in connection herewith, P. A. 

SMITH HOTEL and the City agree to cooperate in the defense of such suit or claim, and to 

use their respective best efforts to resolve the suit or claim without diminution of their 

respective rights and obligations under this Agreement.  The filing of any third party 

lawsuit relating to this Agreement or the development of the Project will not delay, stop or 

otherwise affect the development of the Project or the City's processing or issuance of any 

approvals for the Project, unless otherwise required by a court of competent jurisdiction.  

 

ARTICLE 11 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

11.1 Assignment; Binding Effect.    

 

11.1.1 This Agreement, and the rights and obligations of P. A. SMITH HOTEL 

hereunder, may be assigned by P. A. SMITH HOTEL to a subsequent 

purchaser of all or a portion of the Land within the Project provided that the 

assignee assumes all of the obligations of the Agreement.  Any assignment 

must be in writing, specifically describe the property in question, set forth 

the assigned rights and obligations and be executed by the proposed 

assignee.  A copy of the assignment document must be delivered to the City.  

Upon any such assignment, P. A. SMITH HOTEL will be released of any 

further obligations under this Agreement as to the property sold and 

obligations assigned. Any attempted assignment of this Agreement, or any 

rights and obligations hereunder, that fails to comply with all applicable 

requirements of this Article 11 and this Agreement shall be void and of no 

effect. 

 

11.1.2 If P. A. SMITH HOTEL assigns its rights and obligations hereunder as to a 

portion of the Project, then the rights and obligations of any assignee and P. 

A. SMITH HOTEL will be severable, and P. A. SMITH HOTEL will not be 

liable for the nonperformance of the assignee and vice-versa.  In the case of 

nonperformance by one assignee, the City may pursue all remedies against 

that nonperforming assignee, but will not unreasonably impede development 

activities of any performing assignee as a result of that nonperformance. 

 



 

 8 

11.1.3 The provisions of this Agreement will be binding upon, and inure to the 

benefit of the Parties, and their respective successors and assigns.  This 

Agreement will not, however, be binding upon, or create any encumbrance 

to title as to, any ultimate consumer who purchases a lot or lots within the 

boundaries of the Land without also expressly assuming the obligations 

imposed herein. 

 

11.2 Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or 

unenforceable, under present or future laws, it is the intention of the Parties that the 

remainder of this Agreement not be affected, and, in lieu of each illegal, invalid, or 

unenforceable provision, that a provision be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid, 

and enforceable and is as similar in terms to the illegal, invalid or enforceable provision as 

is possible. 

 

11.3 Applicable Law and Venue.  The interpretation, performance, enforcement and 

validity of this Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Texas.  Exclusive venue 

will be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction in Grimes County, Texas. 

 

11.4 No Third Party Beneficiary.  This Agreement is not intended, nor will it be 

construed, to create any third-party beneficiary rights in any person or entity who is not a 

Party, unless expressly otherwise provided. 

 

11.5 Mortgagee Protection.  This Agreement will not affect the right of P. A. SMITH 

HOTEL to encumber all or any portion of the Land by mortgage, deed of trust or other 

instrument to secure financing for the Project.  The City agrees as follows: 

 

11.5.1 Neither entering into this Agreement, nor any breach of this Agreement, will 

affect any lien upon all or any portion of the Land. 

 

11.5.2 The City will, upon written request of a Lender given in compliance with 

Section 11.16, provide the Lender with a copy of any written notice of 

default given to P. A. SMITH HOTEL under this Agreement within ten (10) 

days of the date such notice is given to P. A. SMITH HOTEL. 

 

11.5.3 In the event of default by P. A. SMITH HOTEL under this Agreement, a 

Lender may, but will not be obligated to, cure any default during any cure 

period extended to P. A. SMITH HOTEL, either under this Agreement or 

under the notice of default. 

 

11.5.4 Any Lender who comes into possession of any portion of the Land by 

foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure will take such property subject to 

the terms of this Agreement.  No Lender will be liable for any defaults or 

monetary obligations of P. A. SMITH HOTEL arising prior to the Lender’s 

acquisition of title, but a Lender will not be entitled to obtain any permits or 

approvals with respect to that property until all delinquent fees and other 



 

 9 

obligations of P. A. SMITH HOTEL under this Agreement that relate to the 

property in question have been paid or performed. 

 

11.6 Certificate of Compliance.  Within thirty (30) days of written request by either 

Party given in accordance with Section 11.16, the other Party will execute and deliver to 

the requesting Party a statement certifying that: (a) this Agreement is unmodified and in 

full force and effect or, if there have been modifications, that this Agreement is in full force 

and effect as modified and stating the date and nature of each modification; (b) there are no 

current uncured defaults under this Agreement, or specifying the date and nature of each 

default; and (c) any other information that may be reasonably requested.  A Party's failure 

to deliver a requested certification within this 30-day period will conclusively be deemed to 

constitute a confirmation that this Agreement is in full force without modification, and that 

there are no uncured defaults on the part of the requesting Party.  The City Manager will be 

authorized to execute any requested certificate on behalf of the City. 

 

11.7 Default.  If either Party defaults in its obligations under this Agreement, the other 

Party must, prior to exercising a remedy available to that Party due to the default, give 

written notice to the defaulting Party, specifying the nature of the alleged default and the 

manner in which it can be satisfactorily cured, and extend to the defaulting Party at least 

thirty (30) days from receipt of the notice to cure the default.  If the nature of the default is 

such that it cannot reasonably be cured within the 30-day period, the commencement of the 

cure within the 30-day period and the diligent prosecution of the cure to completion will be 

deemed a cure within the cure period. 

 

11.8 Remedies for Default.   If either Party defaults under this Agreement and fails to 

cure the default within the applicable cure period, the non-defaulting Party will have all 

rights and remedies available under this Agreement or applicable law, including the right to 

institute legal action to cure any default, to enjoin any threatened or attempted violation of 

this Agreement or to enforce the defaulting Party’s obligations under this Agreement by 

specific performance or writ of mandamus, or to terminate this Agreement.  All remedies 

available to a Party will be cumulative and the pursuit of one remedy will not constitute an 

election of remedies or a waiver of the right to pursue any other available remedy.  

 

11.9 Reservation of Rights.  To the extent not inconsistent with this Agreement, each 

Party reserves all rights, privileges, and immunities under applicable laws.  

 

11.10 Attorneys Fees.  The prevailing Party in any dispute under this Agreement will be 

entitled to recover from the non-prevailing Party its reasonable attorney’s fees, expenses 

and court costs in connection with any original action, any appeals, and any post-judgment 

proceedings to collect or enforce a judgment. 

 

11.11 Waiver.  Any failure by a Party to insist upon strict performance by the other Party 

of any provision of this Agreement will not, regardless of the length of time during which 

that failure continues, be deemed a waiver of that Party’s right to insist upon strict 

compliance with all terms of this Agreement.  In order to be effective as to a Party, any 

waiver of default under this Agreement must be in writing, and a written waiver will only 



 

 10 

be effective as to the specific default and as to the specific period of time set forth in the 

written waiver.  A written waiver will not constitute a waiver of any subsequent default, or 

of the right to require performance of the same or any other provision of this Agreement in 

the future.  

 

11.12 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties, 

and there are no other agreements or promises, oral or written, between the Parties 

regarding the subject matter of this Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended only by 

written agreement signed by the Parties.  

 

11.13 Exhibits, Headings, Construction and Counterparts.  All exhibits attached to this 

Agreement are incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement for all purposes.  The 

paragraph headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience only and do not 

enlarge or limit the scope or meaning of the paragraphs.  Wherever appropriate, words of 

the masculine gender may include the feminine or neuter, and the singular may include the 

plural, and vice-versa.  Each of the Parties has been actively and equally involved in the 

negotiation of this Agreement.  Accordingly, the rule of construction that any ambiguities 

are to be resolved against the drafting Party will not be employed in interpreting this 

Agreement or its exhibits.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an original, and all of which will together 

constitute the same instrument.  This Agreement will become effective only when one or 

more counterparts, individually or taken together, bear the signatures of all of the Parties. 

 

11.14 Time.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.  In computing the number of days 

for purposes of this Agreement, all days will be counted, including Saturdays, Sundays and 

legal holidays; however, if the final day of any time period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or 

legal holiday, then the final day will be deemed to be the next day that is not a Saturday, 

Sunday or legal holiday. 

 

11.15 Authority for Execution.  The City certifies, represents, and warrants that the 

execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized and that this Agreement has been 

approved in conformity with City ordinances and other applicable legal requirements.  P. 

A. SMITH HOTEL certifies, represents, and warrants that the execution of this Agreement 

is duly authorized in conformity with its bylaws and other legal requirements. 

 

11.16 Notices.  Any notices under this Agreement may be sent by hand delivery, facsimile 

(with confirmation of delivery) or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the Parties at 

the following addresses or as such addresses may be changed from time to time by written 

notice to the other Parties: 

 

 

 

City:    Jason Weeks, City Manager 

City of Navasota 

200 E. McAlpine 

Navasota, Texas 77868-3028 



 

 11 

 Telephone: (936) 825-6408 

 Facsimile:  (936) 825-2403 

 jweeks@navasotatx.gov 

 

Copy to:  Cary L. Bovey, Attorney at Law 

Bovey & Cochran, PLLC 

2251 Double Creek Dr., Suite 204 

Round Rock, TX 78664 

(512) 904-9441 

 (512) 904-9445 Fax 

 cary@boveycochran.com 

 

 

P.A. SMITH HOTEL P. A. Smith Hotel, LLC 

   18025 DOE RUN CREEK LN 

   WASHINGTON, TX 77880 

 

               

Stephen E. Scheve 

18025 Doe Run Creek Lane 

Washington, TX 77880____________________________ 

 

Copy to:   

Janice R. Scheve 

18025 Doe Run Creek Lane 

Washington, TX 77880_____________________________ 

 

Either City or P. A. SMITH HOTEL may change its mailing address at any time by 

giving written notice of such change to the other in the manner provided herein at least ten 

(10) days prior to the date such change is effected.  All notices under this Agreement will 

be deemed given on the earlier of the date personal delivery is affected or on the delivery 

date or attempted delivery date shown on the return receipt or facsimile confirmation. 

 

11.17.  Exhibits.  The following exhibits are attached to this Agreement, and made a part 

hereof for all purposes: 

 

Exhibit A - Legal Description of the Land 

 Exhibit B - Site Plan, and Other Documents 

 

 

 

 

 

[remainder of this page intentionally left blank] 



 

 12 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Parties have executed this Agreement 

on the dates indicated below, to be effective on the date the last party signs. 

 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 

 

 

By:        

Hon. William A. (“Bert”) Miller, III, Mayor 

Date:        

 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

    § 

COUNTY OF GRIMES § 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ______ day of 

______________, 2022, by William A. (“Bert”) Miller, III, the Mayor of the City 

Navasota, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation, on behalf of the City. 

 

       

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

(NOTARY SEAL) 
 

 

P. A. SMITH HOTEL, LLC 
 
 
By:        
Name:   
Title:  
Date:        
 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 

COUNTY OF GRIMES § 

 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of 

_______________, 2022, by _______________, ______________ of P. A. SMITH 
HOTEL, LLC, a Texas limited liability company. 
 

       
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

(NOTARY SEAL)



 

 13 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

H&TC, BLOCK J, LOT 4 (S21') 5 

 



211 10TH STREET
NAVASOTA, TEXAS 77868

21-0293 NAVASOTA PARKING LOT

CIVIL ENGINEERING PLANS FOR

PREPARED BY:

LOCATION MAP
NTS

N

OWNER:

NAME: STEVE SCHEVE
ADDRESS: 18025 DOE RUN CREEK LANE,

         WASHINGTON, TEXAS 77880
TELEPHONE: (281) 455-9283
EMAIL: SSCHEVE@REEDSMITH.COM

HOLLAND STREET

10TH
 STR

EET

GESSNER ENGINEERING

Suite 3

Corporate Office

401 W. 26th Street

Bryan, Texas 77803

www.gessnerengineering.com

FIRM REGISTRATION NUMBER:

TBPE F-7451, TBPLS F-10193910

BRYAN 979.680.8840

979.836.6855

817.405.0774

210.556.4124

BRENHAM

FORT WORTH

SAN ANTONIO

512.930.5832GEORGETOWN

PROJECT LOCATION

Sheet List Table
Sheet Number Sheet Title

-- COVER PAGE

C000 NOTES

C100 SITE PLAN

C200 EROSION CONTROL PLAN

C300 DEMOLITION PLAN

C400 DRAINAGE AREA MAP

C500 GRADING & UTILITY PLAN
C600 DETAILS
C601 DETAILS

ENGINEER:

NAME: SHAUN HANSON
ADDRESS: 401 W. 26TH STREET, SUITE 3,

         BRYAN, TEXAS 77803
TELEPHONE: (979) 314-8999
EMAIL: SHANSON@GESSNERENG.COM

SURVEYOR:

NAME: DANNY DAVIS
ADDRESS: 11913 STARCREST DRIVE,

         SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS 78247
TELEPHONE: (726) 888-6692
EMAIL: DDAVES@GESSNERENG.COM

EXHIBIT "B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
132894

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAUN J. HANSON



21
1 

S 
10

TH
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

N
A

VA
SO

TA
, T

X.
 7

78
68

ISSUE DATE:

PROJECT #:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

REVISIONS

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

CORPORATE OFFICE
401 W. 26TH STREET, SUITE 3

BRYAN, TEXAS 77840
1-877-GESSNER (437-7637)

www.gessnerengineering.com

FIRM REGISTRATION NUMBERS:
TBPE F-7451, TBPLS F-10193910

ER, NF

SH

12/02/2021

21-0293

GENERAL NOTES:

1. PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR MUST PROVIDE SUBMITTALS OF PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS FOR REVIEW BY THE DESIGN ENGINEER A MINIMUM OF 14 DAYS PRIOR TO REQUIRED USE.

2. A PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING WILL BE HELD PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION. TIME AND
LOCATION TO BE DETERMINED BY OWNER.

3. ALL BOUNDARY, TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION, AND SURVEY CONTROL WAS COMPLETED IN JULY 2021 BY
SURVEYOR GESSNER ENGINEERING. CHANGES IN SITE OR FIELD CONDITIONS MAY HAVE OCCURRED.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL SURVEY MONUMENTATION, BENCHMARKS, AND MARKERS DURING
CONSTRUCTION.

5. THE CONTRACTOR MUST PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION STAKING SERVICES BASED ON THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN
THE PLANS.

6. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING WITH FACILITY/PROPERTY OWNERS. CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGE DONE TO EXISTING FACILITIES, PAVEMENT, ETC. AS A RESULT OF CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITIES.

7. ALL ITEMS SHOWN ON THESE PLANS ARE ASSUMED NEW/PROPOSED UNLESS DESIGNATED OR SHOWN AS EXISTING
AND SHALL BE FURNISHED AND INSTALLED BY THE CONTRACTOR INCLUSIVE OF ANY MATERIALS, LABOR,
EQUIPMENT, AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS FOR A COMPLETE AND FUNCTIONING SITE ELEMENT. ALL ITEMS
NECESSARY FOR PROPER COMPLETION OF THE WORK NOT SPECIFICALLY CALLED FOR OR SPECIFIED ON THE PLANS
ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR AND CONSIDERED SUBSIDIARY TO THE WORK.

8. ALL UTILITIES AND SERVICE LINES SHOWN ARE TAKEN FROM RECORD INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY THE UTILITY
OWNER OR HORIZONTALLY LOCATED BY INDEPENDENT LOCATORS. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO REPORT ANY
CONFLICTS BETWEEN PLAN AND ACTUAL CONDITIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. OWNER, SURVEYOR, AND
ENGINEER SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF INFORMATION OR DATA RELIED
ON TO DEPICT UNDERGROUND FACILITIES. CONTRACTOR IS TO VERIFY THE EXACT LOCATION AND VERTICAL
POSITIONING OF ALL PIPELINES, COMMUNICATION LINES, ELECTRICAL LINES, EXISTING UTILITIES, AND SERVICE LINES
WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA, WHETHER SHOWN ON THE PLANS OR NOT, AT LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR IS TO CONTACT OWNERS OF ALL UTILITIES AND SERVICE LINES WITHIN THE PROJECT
AREA AND NOTIFY OF INTENT AT LEAST 1 WEEK PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

9. CONTRACTOR IS TO MAINTAIN STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY OF ALL PIPELINES, ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION POLES AND
LINES, PERMANENT AND TEMPORARY UTILITIES, AND UTILITY SERVICES.

10. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROTECTION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES OR SERVICE LINES
DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS.  WHERE EXISTING UTILITIES OR SERVICE LINES ARE DAMAGED, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL REPAIR OR REPLACE THE UTILITY OR SERVICE LINE WITH THE SAME TYPE OF MATERIAL AND
CONSTRUCTION, OR BETTER.  ALL MATERIAL AND LABOR SHALL BE AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

11. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY TEXAS811 AT LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY AT
811 OR HTTP://WWW.TEXAS811.ORG.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO NOTIFY APPLICABLE UTILITY COMPANIES THAT
HAVE UTILITY LINES ON OR IN THE GENERAL VICINITY OF THIS PROJECT SITE AT LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO
BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE,
AND FEDERAL STANDARDS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND REGULATIONS. WHERE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS CONFLICT
WITH THOSE GUIDELINES, THE MORE STRINGENT REQUIREMENTS SHALL GOVERN.

12. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THESE PLANS AND ONSITE FIELD
CONDITIONS OR SPECIFICATIONS OF OTHER DISCIPLINES. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO REPORT ANY
CONFLICTS WITHIN PLANS OR SPECIFICATIONS AND AWAIT WRITTEN INSTRUCTION FROM ENGINEER OR ARCHITECT
PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION.

13. THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY PERMITS, AS WELL AS INSPECTION APPROVALS.
14. A COPY OF APPROVED CONSTRUCTION PLANS SHALL BE KEPT ON SITE AT ALL TIMES THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN A SET OF REDLINE DRAWINGS TO RECORD AS-BUILT CONDITIONS.
15. DURING CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN AN ORDERLY PROJECT SITE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL

CLEAN, REMOVE, AND PROPERLY DISPOSE OF ANY SURPLUS OR DISCARDED MATERIALS, TEMPORARY STRUCTURES,
AND DEBRIS FROM THE PROJECT SITE.

16. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR STORAGE AND SAFE-GUARDING OF ALL MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT AT THE
PROJECT SITE TO MAINTAIN A SAFE AND SECURE PROJECT.

17. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CONTAINMENT AND PROPER DISPOSAL OF ALL LIQUID AND
SOLID WASTE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PROJECT. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL USE ALL MEANS NECESSARY TO PREVENT
THE OCCURRENCE OF WIND BLOWN LITTER FROM THE PROJECT SITE. THE SITE IS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE
CONTAINMENT FOR WASTE PRIOR TO AND DURING DEMOLITION. SOLID WASTE ROLL OFF BOXES AND/OR METAL
DUMPSTER SHALL BE SUPPLIED BY THE CONTRACTOR.

18. CONTRACTOR IS TO CONFINE ALL WORK TO OWNER'S PROPERTY.  NO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY IS ALLOWED ON OR
THROUGH PRIVATE PROPERTY UNLESS COVERED BY A PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT OR OTHER DOCUMENTED
AGREEMENT.  ANY ADJACENT RIGHT-OF-WAY (R.O.W.) OR PROPERTY AFFECTED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE
RETURNED TO PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONDITION AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

19. ALL EXISTING UTILITY APPURTENANCES (VALVE BOXES, FIRE HYDRANTS, MANHOLE RING AND COVER, JUNCTION BOX
RING AND COVER, ETC) SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO FINAL GRADES.

20. ALL CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS FOR THIS PROJECT SHALL BE ACCOMPLISHED IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE
REGULATIONS OF THE UNITED STATES OCCUPATIONAL AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION (OSHA).

21. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR  COMPLYING WITH ALL STATE AND FEDERAL REGULATIONS REGARDING
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES NEAR ENERGIZED OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINES.

22. THESE PLANS, PREPARED BY GESSNER ENGINEERING, DO NOT EXTEND TO OR INCLUDE DESIGNS OR SYSTEMS
PERTAINING TO THE SAFETY OF THE CONTRACTOR OR HIS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS OR REPRESENTATIVES IN THE
PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK. THE SEAL HEREON DOES NOT EXTEND TO ANY SUCH SAFETY SYSTEMS THAT MAY
NOW OR HEREAFTER BE INCORPORATED IN THE WORK.

23. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE AND LIABLE FOR ALL JOB SITE SAFETY, FOR MANAGEMENT OF JOB SITE
PERSONNEL. FOR SUPERVISION OF THE USE OF JOB SITE EQUIPMENT AND FOR DIRECTION OF ALL CONSTRUCTION
PROCEDURES, METHODS, AND ELEMENTS REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROPOSED
IMPROVEMENTS.

24. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH AVADEK FOR THE DETAIL OF THE CARPORT PRIOR TO ORDERING
MATERIALS. CONTRACTOR TO SUBMIT THE SHOP DRAWINGS OF THE CONNECTIONS, PLATES, AND
FOOTINGS TO THE ENGINEER OF RECORD FOR REVIEW.

DEMOLITION NOTES:

1. AREAS BENEATH REMOVED PAVEMENT SHALL BE CLEARED OF ALL LOOSE OR DISTURBED MATERIAL AND WATER.
THE AREA SHALL BE PROOF-ROLLED AND MANUALLY COMPACTED OR  REPLACED WITH SIMILAR MATERIALS PRIOR
TO NEW PAVEMENT PLACEMENT PER SPECIFICATIONS.

2. UNDER ALL IMPROVEMENTS, ALL ITEMS ARE TO BE REMOVED UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED. REMOVE NOT ONLY
THE ABOVE GROUND ELEMENTS BUT ALL UNDERGROUND ELEMENTS FOR UTILITIES UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED.
DURING CLEARING AND GRUBBING ACTIVITIES WHERE TREES AND BRUSH ARE TO BE REMOVED, REMOVE THE TOTAL
EXTENT OF THEIR ROOT SYSTEMS. UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY THE OWNER, ALL MATERIALS AND DEBRIS
DEMOLISHED AND/OR REMOVED SHALL BECOME PROPERTY OF THE CONTRACTOR AND SHALL BE REMOVED FROM
THE SITE AND DISPOSED OF IN A MANNER SATISFACTORY TO THE OWNER, ARCHITECT, & ENGINEER. ON-SITE
BURNING WILL NOT BE PERMITTED.

3. ALL EXCESS TOPSOIL AND CUT MATERIAL IS TO BE HAULED OFF AND DISPOSED OF OFF-SITE.
4. CONTRACTOR SHALL PREVENT TRANSPORT OF SEDIMENT TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES AND PUBLIC OR PRIVATE

RIGHT OF WAYS AND IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CLEANUP IF SUCH OCCURS. CONTRACTOR IS TO ENSURE NO
CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS OR MUD IS TRACKED OR DISCARDED ON TO ANY PUBLIC OR PRIVATE STREETS OR LAND AND
IS RESPONSIBLE FOR SITE CLEANUP AFTER EACH DAYS WORK. CONTRACTOR IS TO MAKE USE OF BEST
MANAGEMENT PRACTICES TO PREVENT SEDIMENT FROM LEAVING THE SITE OR ENTERING EXISTING STORM SEWER
OR DOWNSTREAM CHANNEL AREAS. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN EROSION CONTROL THROUGHOUT
CONSTRUCTION PERIOD AND UNTIL GRASS IS ESTABLISHED.

5. CONTRACTOR TO PROTECT ALL OR INDICATED EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN DURING DEMOLITION AND
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

DIMENSION CONTROL NOTES:

1. THE CONTRACTOR MAY OBTAIN AN ELECTRONIC COPY OF PROJECT PLANS FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES, WITH
THE PERMISSION OF THE OWNER.  THE ELECTRONIC FILE AND INFORMATION GENERATED, BY GESSNER
ENGINEERING, FOR THIS PROJECT IS CONSIDERED BY GESSNER ENGINEERING, TO BE CONFIDENTIAL.  WHEN ISSUED,
ITS USE IS INTENDED SOLELY FOR THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY TO WHICH IT IS ADDRESSED.  THE MATERIAL IS
INTENDED FOR USE BY THE RECIPIENT NAMED, ONLY, AND PERMISSION IS NOT GRANTED TO THE RECIPIENT FOR
DISTRIBUTION OF THIS DOCUMENTS IN ANY FORM OR FASHION.  THE RECIPIENT UNDERSTANDS THAT THIS DATA IS
AUTHORIZED "AS IS" WITHOUT ANY WARRANTY AS TO ITS PERFORMANCE, ACCURACY, FREEDOM FROM ERROR, OR
AS TO ANY RESULTS GENERATED THROUGHOUT ITS USE.  THE RECIPIENT ALSO UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT
GESSNER ENGINEERING, UPON RELEASE OF SUCH DATA, IS NOT LONGER RESPONSIBLE FOR THEIR USE OR
MODIFICATION.  THE USER AND RECIPIENT OF THE ELECTRONIC DATA ACCEPTS FULL RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY
FOR ANY CONSEQUENCES ARISING OUT OF THEIR USE.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE TO BE USED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PLANS FOR LOCATING ALL IMPROVEMENTS
AND SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR FOR WORKABILITY PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OF THE
IMPROVEMENTS. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE, ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO BACK OF CURB.

GRADING NOTES:

1. ALL UNPAVED AREAS SHALL BE ADEQUATELY GRADED TO DRAIN AT A MINIMUM OF 2.0% SLOPE, UNLESS OTHERWISE

NOTED, SO THAT NO PONDING OCCURS.
2. WHEN TOP OF CURB ELEVATIONS ARE SHOWN, THE CURB IS A STANDARD 6" CURB, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
3. ALL SPOTS ARE TOP OF CURB ELEVATIONS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
4. CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW THE GENERAL INTENT OF THE GRADING PLANS.  MINOR ADJUSTMENTS TO THE

ACTUAL ELEVATIONS SHOWN ON THE GRADING PLAN MAY BE REQUIRED TO MATCH EXISTING GROUND ELEVATIONS
AND STRUCTURES.  CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO ANY MODIFICATIONS.

5. ADEQUATE DRAINAGE SHALL BE MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES DURING CONSTRUCTION AND ANY DRAINAGE DITCH OR
STRUCTURE DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE RESTORED TO EXISTING CONDITIONS OR BETTER.

6. THE APPROVAL OF THE PLANS IS NOT AN AUTHORIZATION TO GRADE ADJACENT PROPERTIES.  WHEN FIELD
CONDITIONS WARRANT OFF-SITE GRADING, PERMISSION MUST BE OBTAINED FROM AFFECTED PROPERTY
OWNER(S).  ANY ADJACENT PROPERTY OR RIGHT-OF-WAY DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE RETURNED
TO EXISTING CONDITIONS OR BETTER.

7. FILL MATERIAL FOR NON-STRUCTURAL AREAS (5 FOOT OUTSIDE OF EDGE OF PAVEMENT, BACK OF CURB, OR
IMPROVED AREAS) SHALL BE PLACED IN 8" MAXIMUM LOOSE LIFTS AND COMPACTED TO A UNIFORM DENSITY OF AT
LEAST 95% OF THE MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY AS DETERMINED BY THE STANDARD PROCTOR (ASTM D698) WITH A
MOISTURE CONTENT OF +/- 3% OF OPTIMUM.

8. COMPACTION AND MOISTURE CONTROL SHALL BE VERIFIED BY IN-PLACE DENSITY TEST FOR EACH LIFT, 1 TEST PER
4,000 SF OF FILL PLACED, WITH A MINIMUM OF 1 TEST PER LIFT.

9. PRIOR TO REVEGETATION OPERATIONS. CONTRACTOR TO SPREAD/REPLACE AND CONSOLIDATE TOPSOIL TO A
DEPTH OF 6" MINIMUM.

10. ALL DISRUPTED AREAS ARE TO HAVE ESTABLISHMENT OF GRASS AS OUTLINED BELOW. CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR WATERING (INCLUDING TEMPORARY IRRIGATION IN AREAS NOT RECEIVING PERMANENT
IRRIGATION), MAINTENANCE, AND ESTABLISHMENT OF VEGETATION FOR A PERIOD OF 90 DAYS. CONTRACTOR TO
GUARANTEE ALL PLANTED MATERIAL GROWTH AND COVERAGE FOR A PERIOD OF 6 MONTHS. GROWTH AND
COVERAGE SHALL BE DEFINED AS 95% OF THE PLANTED AREA WITH UNIFORM COVERAGE OF GRASS GREATER THAN
1" IN HEIGHT WITH NO BARE SPOTS GREATER THAN 2 SQUARE FEET. SECOND APPLICATION OF SEED OR
HYDROMULCH OR SOD IS REQUIRED FOR BARE SPOTS NOT MEETING COVERAGE REQUIREMENT WITHIN 30 DAYS OF
INITIAL APPLICATION.

11. ALL DISTURBED AREAS NOT TO BE PAVED OR LANDSCAPED ARE TO BE PREPARED AND HYDROMULCH OR SEEDED OR
SOD INSTALLED FOR PERMANENT ESTABLISHMENT OF VEGETATION. PRIOR TO OPERATIONS, CONTRACTOR IS TO
REPLACE AND CONSOLIDATE TOPSOIL TO A DEPTH OF 6" MINIMUM. TOPSOIL TO BE HARLEYRAKE/TILLED TO A DEPTH
OF 4" PRIOR TO SEEDING OR INSTALLATION OF SOD. FINAL GRADES WITH ESTABLISHED VEGETATION SHALL PROVIDE
POSITIVE DRAINAGE. REVEGETATE PER B/CS UNIFIED TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS - SPEC #32-92-19 SEEDING FOR
EROSION CONTROL OR PROVIDE "TEXAS TOUGH" BERMUDAGRASS AT 1.25 LBS PER THOUSAND SQUARE FEET.
BERMUDAGRASS SHALL BE DRILL SEEDED TO A DEPTH OF 1/8" TO 1/4".

12. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN EROSION CONTROL UNTIL ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS ARE ESTABLISHED. CONTRACTOR
IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CLEANUP FROM LANDSCAPING MATERIALS. MULCH OR LANDSCAPE SEDIMENT TRANSPORT
THAT MAY OCCUR AFTER LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION INCLUDING MAINTENANCE OF GRATES AND TRENCH DRAINS.

13. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR SUBMITTING N.O.I./N.O.T. (IF NECESSARY) TO T.C.E.Q & PROVIDING
DOCUMENTATION OF SUBMISSION TO THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION.

14. IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO PROTECT ALL MANHOLES, CLEANOUTS, VALVE BOXES,
FIRE HYDRANTS, ETC. WITHIN THE AREA OF CONSTRUCTION.  THEY MUST BE ADJUSTED TO PROPER GRADE BY THE
CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO AND AFTER THE PLACING OF PAVEMENT AND GRADING.

15. SIDEWALKS SHALL HAVE A SLOPE NO GREATER THAN 5% AND A CROSS SLOPE NOT GREATER THAN 2%, UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

16. HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES AND ACCESS AISLES SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM OF 2% SLOPE IN ALL
DIRECTIONS.

17. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT GESSNER ENGINEERING IF DISCREPANCIES EXIST AT EXISTING GRADE TIE-INS.

PAVEMENT NOTES:

1. SUBGRADE:
1.A. EXISTING VEGETATION, TREES, STUMPS, AND ROOTS SHALL BE GRUBBED AND REMOVED.  THE TOP 24" OF

TOPSOIL AND SUBGRADE STRIPPED FROM THE AREAS TO BE COVERED BY PAVEMENT INCLUDING THE DEPTH OF
THE ABANDONED CONCRETE PAD.

1.B. PAVING AREAS SHALL BE PROOF-ROLLED WITH A 20 TON COMPACTOR AND, IF REQUIRED AT THE TIME OF
CONSTRUCTION , THE CONTRACTOR SHALL STABILIZE WEAK AREAS BY OVER EXCAVATING AND BACKFILLING
WITH SPECIFIED MATERIALS.

1.C. FILL MATERIAL FOR STRUCTURAL AREAS (EXTENDING 5 FOOT BEYOND EDGE OF PAVEMENT OR BACK OF CURB)
SHALL MEET THE SPECIFIED MATERIALS OR MATERIALS AS OUTLINED IN THE GEOTECH REPORT, BE PLACED IN 8"
MAXIMUM LOOSE LIFTS, AND COMPACTED TO A UNIFORM DENSITY OF AT LEAST 98% OF THE MAXIMUM DRY
DENSITY AS DETERMINED BY THE STANDARD PROCTOR (ASTM D698) WITH A MOISTURE CONTENT OF +/- 3% OF
OPTIMUM.

1.D. COMPACTION AND MOISTURE CONTROL SHALL BE VERIFIED BY IN-PLACE DENSITY TEST FOR EACH LIFT FOR
EVERY 200 LINEAR FEET OF PAVEMENT OR EVERY 4,000 SF OF FILL PLACED, WHICH EVER WOULD PRODUCE THE
GREATER TESTING FREQUENCY, WITH A MINIMUM OF ONE TEST PER LIFT.

1.E. SOILS SHALL BE STABILIZED WITH LIME TREATMENT IF PAVEMENT SUBGRADE SOILS CONSIST OF CLAYS OR
CLAYEY SANDS OF HIGH PLASTICITY (PI>20).

1.F. SOILS SHALL BE STABILIZED WITH CEMENT TREATMENT IF PAVEMENT SUBGRADE SOILS CONSIST OF SANDS OR
SILTS WITH LOW PLASTICITY (PI <= 15).

1.G. STABILIZATION SHALL BE ACCOMPLISHED SUCH THAT A UNIFORM SUBGRADE MIX IS OBTAINED AND SHALL
EXTEND TO 2 FOOT BEYOND THE BACK OF CURB OR EDGE OF PAVEMENT.  PRIOR TO THE APPLICATION OF LIME
OR CEMENT TO THE SUBGRADE, THE OPTIMUM PERCENTAGE TO BE ADDED SHALL BE DETERMINED BASED ON
TEX-121-E LABORATORY TESTS (LIME) AND TEX-120-E LABORATORY TESTS (CEMENT) CONDUCTED ON MIXTURES
OF THE SUBGRADE SOILS WITH VARYING PERCENTAGES.  SUBGRADE SOIL SAMPLES SHOULD BE OBTAINED FROM
THE PAVEMENT AREA AT THE PROPOSED FINAL SUBGRADE ELEVATION.  THE LIME OR CEMENT SHOULD INITIALLY
BE BLENDED WITH A MIXING DEVICE SUCH AS PULVERIZER OR MIXER AND SUFFICIENT WATER ADDED.

1.H. THE AMOUNT OF LIME REQUIRED FOR STABILIZATION SHOULD BE THE PERCENT REQUIRED BY WEIGHT TO
PRODUCE A PH NOT LESS THAN 12.4 AND TO PROVIDE A PI VALUE OF LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 18.

1.I. THE AMOUNT OF CEMENT REQUIRED FOR STABILIZATION SHOULD BE THE PERCENT REQUIRED BY WEIGHT TO
PRODUCE A MINIMUM COMPRESSION STRENGTH OF 50 PSI PRIOR TO BEING OPEN TO LOCAL OR CONSTRUCTION
TRAFFIC.

1.J. A STABILIZATION DEPTH CHECK SHALL BE PERFORMED WITH EACH DENSITY TEST FOR THE STABILIZED LIFT.

2. CONCRETE PAVEMENT:
2.A. CONCRETE SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM 28-DAY COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 4,000 PSI.
2.B. ALL CONCRETE SHALL BE VIBRATED WHEN PLACED.
2.C. PAVEMENT CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE INSTALLED PER PLAN AND DETAIL SHEET, WITH A MAXIMUM SPACING

OF 24 TIMES THE THICKNESS OF THE PAVEMENT (12' FOR 6" PAVEMENT).  CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE
INSTALLED AS SOON AS CONCRETE CURING ALLOWS AND SHALL BE CUT 1/4 OF THE THICKNESS OF THE
PAVEMENT.  AN EARLY ENTRY SAW IS PREFERRED.  TOOLED OR FORMED JOINTS ARE NOT ALLOWED.

2.D. PAVEMENT EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE SPACED AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS AND INSTALLED PER DETAIL SHEET.
CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE STOPPED AT EXPANSION JOINTS.  IF CONDITIONS REQUIRE, CONSTRUCTION TO BE
STOPPED AT OTHER LOCATIONS, A COLD JOINT SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED.

2.E. ISOLATION JOINTS SHALL BE PLACED AT ALL IN-PAVEMENT OBJECTS INCLUDING INLETS, LIGHT POLE FOOTINGS,
CLEANOUTS, ETC.

2.F. ALL JOINTS SHALL BE SEALED. PROVIDE EXPANSION JOINT WATER STOP CAPS AT NEW CONCRETE. PROVIDE
EXPANSION JOINT SEALANT AT NEW TO EXISTING PAVEMENT.

2.G. REFERENCE DETAIL SHEET FOR PAVEMENT AND SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION DETAILS.
2.H. TRANSPORTATION AND PLACEMENT OF THE CONCRETE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACI 301.  A TEST SET

CONSISTING OF 4 CYLINDERS SHALL BE TAKEN FOR EVERY 75 CUBIC YARDS OF CONCRETE.

3. REINFORCING STEEL:
3.A. ALL REINFORCEMENT SHALL BE ASTM A-615, GRADE 60.  THE PAVEMENT REINFORCEMENT SHALL BE PER DETAILS.
3.B. LAPS AND SPLICES IN REINFORCING BARS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 30 BAR DIAMETERS IN LENGTH.  BARS SHALL

BE SECURED AT EVERY OTHER INTERSECTION.

4. CURB AND GUTTER SECTION:
4.A. EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE SPACED AT A MAXIMUM DISTANCE OF 40' AND AT ALL RADIUS POINTS, PT'S AND PC'S

AND SHALL BE SEALED.
4.B. CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE SPACED AT A MAXIMUM OF 10' AND SHALL BE SEALED. TOOLED OR FORMED

JOINTS ARE NOT ALLOWED.

5. PAINTING AND STRIPING:
5.A. CONTRACTOR SHALL PAINT STRIPING FOR THE PARKING AREA AS INDICATED ON THE PLAN. THE SOLID LINE

REPRESENTS A 4" WIDE SOLID WHITE LINE TO BE PAINTED. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO PAINT HANDICAP
MARKINGS AND LOADING ZONES IN CONFORMANCE WITH CURRENT ADA/TAS STANDARDS AND ALL FIRE LANE
MARKINGS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF NAVASOTA REQUIREMENTS.

5.B. MATERIAL AND METHODS FOR PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL CONFORM TO ITEM 666 OF THE TXDOT STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF HIGHWAYS, STREETS, AND BRIDGES.

NOTES

C000

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
132894

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAUN J. HANSON



LP LP

LP

LP

COVERED PARKING

12

9

10 TH STREET
(APPROX. 140.0  R.O.W.)
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

HOLLAND STREET
(APPROX. 80.0 R.O.W.)
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

RAILROAD CROSSING
(APPROX. 160.0' R.O.W.)

U
E

UEUEUE

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE

W

1

WWWWW

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE

GFI

GFI

GFI

GFI

UE UE

U
E

U
E

U
E

2
1

3

3

4

4

EX. RETAINING WALL

EX. RETAINING WALL

EX. TRAIN SHED

55

5

5

6

6

7

8

8

EX. RAILROAD CROSSING SIGN

9

6

6

10

10

11

11

13

19

18

19
19.1

PP

PPPP

FH

PP

PP

BM 1
PP

W

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE OE OE OE
OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
EOE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

EXISTING
1 STORY METAL BUILDING

E

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

FO

FO

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W W W W W W W W W

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA

PA Smith Hotel, LLC Lot
5 & Part of Lot 4 Block
J of the H&TC RR
Addition Instrument No.
310337 R.P.R.G.C.

Willie S.
Baldobino, et ux
Called 5988
Sq.Ft.  1072/534
R.P.R.G.C.

BM 2

21
3

213

214

215

213 214

215

21
4

214

43
.6

'

3.
5'

20
.2

'

77
.2

'

5.0'

151.5'

5.
0'

R15.0'R15.0'

53.8'

23.0'

53
.8

'

9.0'

20
.0

'

18
.0

'

9.2'

23.0'

8.9'

137.2'

108.5'
128.8'

16
.0

'

R4.0'
R4.0'

R4.0'

R15.0'

R15.0'

R5.5'

13.2'

18
.5

'

9.0'

18
.0

'

2.1'1.2'

11.0'

5.0'

14

20 209.0'

3.0'

15

12 12
12 12

12

12

21

21

21

17

18

16

18

19

19

21
1 

S 
10

TH
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

N
A

VA
SO

TA
, T

X.
 7

78
68

BMPROJECT BENCHMARK:

BM 1:
A RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE BASE OF A
POWER POLE 5' SOUTHEAST OF THE
FIRE HYDRANT ON 11TH STREET.
ELEVATION =  213.60'

BM 2:
A 60D NAIL 32' SOUTHWEST OF THE
EXISTING ONE STORY METAL BUILDING.
ELEVATION =  213.66'

N

SCALE: 1"= 10'
0 10 20 30

CAUTION: CONTACT TEXAS 811 AND LOCAL UTILITY
PROVIDERS TO LOCATE EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO

CONSTRUCTION.
CONTACT GESSNER ENGINEERING

IF CONFLICTS OCCUR.

ISSUE DATE:

PROJECT #:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

REVISIONS

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

CORPORATE OFFICE
401 W. 26TH STREET, SUITE 3

BRYAN, TEXAS 77840
1-877-GESSNER (437-7637)

www.gessnerengineering.com

FIRM REGISTRATION NUMBERS:
TBPE F-7451, TBPLS F-10193910

ER, NF

SH

12/02/2021

21-0293

SITE PLAN

C100

KEYNOTES
PROPOSED PARKING SPACES TO BE INSTALLED WITH AVADEK ALUMINUM
COVERED PARKING. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH AVADEK FOR
EXACT DIMENSIONS AND SUBMISSION OF SHOP DRAWINGS.

PROPOSED 28.5' X 35' RV PARKING ONLY AREA.

PROPOSED 4" THICK 5' WIDE CONCRETE SIDEWALK TO BE INSTALLED
WITH BRICK PAVERS SEE SHEET C601 FOR DEATAILS
PROPOSED STANDARD BCS ADA RAMP WITH TAPERED CURB
CONNECTION SEE SHEET C600 FOR DETAILS.
PROPOSED LIGHT POLES AND BASES TO BE INSTALLED BY CONTRACTOR.
CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH ENTERGY PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.
POLES WILL BE W.J. WHATLEY, TYPE CF50-D6M-12-AB-DBZ-30-30 WITH
AMERLUX EXTERIOR TYPE
EDR-8108-D131/AO25PC-CL/150HPS-MED-240/CLB.

PROPOSED LANDSCAPE BUFFER

ABANDONED ROW

PROPOSED COMMERCIAL DRIVEWAY SEE SHEET C600 FOR DETAILS.

INSTALL VAN ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGNAGE.

INSTALL ELECTRIC IRON GATE

KEYNOTES

INSTALL CONCRETE WHEELSTOPS TYP. SEE SHEET C601 FOR DETAILS

PROPOSED PRIVATE ELECTRIC PANEL TO BE INSTALLED BY
CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH ENTERGY PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION.

INSTALL 8"X1" SERVICE SADDLE

INSTALL 1" IRR. METER (PUBLIC)

INSTALL BACK FLOW PREVENTER

INSTALL 1" PVC FOR CONDUIT

INSTALL 1 1/2" PVC FOR CONDUIT

INSTALL 1 1/4" PVC FOR CONDUIT

INSTALL 4" PVC SLEEVE FOR CONDUIT

INSTALL 3" PVC SLEEVE FOR CONDUIT

PUBLIC LANDSCAPE PLANTER BEDS SEE SHEET C601 FOR DETAILS

PROPOSED GATE OPENER.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

19.1

20

21

PARKING ANALYSIS:
2 - ACCESSIBLE
19 - STANDARD
1 - RV
22 - TOTAL SPACES

LEGEND

SA

W

G

UE

FH

LP

FO

LP

FH

OE

340

340

W

SA

PROPOSED 7" THICK CONCRETE PAVEMENT

PROPOSED LANDSCAPE AREA

PROPOSED 4" THICK CONCRETE SIDEWALK

PROPOSED DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE

PROPOSED BRICK SIDEWALK PAVER

PROPOSED 6" THICK CONCRETE FLUME

EXISTING PAVEMENT

EXISTING PAVEMENT EDGE

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING EASEMENT

PROPOSED IRON FENCE

EXISTING CONTOURS

PROPOSED CONTOURS

EX. | PROP. WATER LINE

EX. | PROP. SANITARY SEWER LINE

EX. | PROP. GAS LINE

EX. | PROP. UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

EX. | PROP. FIBER OPTIC

EX. | PROP. OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

EX. | PROP. FIRE HYDRANT

EX. | PROP. WATER METER

EX. | PROP. GATE VALVE

EX. | PROP. LIGHT POLE

G

UE

FO

OE

ww

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
132894

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAUN J. HANSON



LP LP

LP

LP

COVERED PARKING

12

9

10 TH STREET
(APPROX. 140.0  R.O.W.)
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

HOLLAND STREET
(APPROX. 80.0 R.O.W.)
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

RAILROAD CROSSING
(APPROX. 160.0' R.O.W.)

U
E

UEUEUE

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE

W

1

WWWWW

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE

GFI

GFI

GFI

GFI

UE UE

U
E

U
E

U
E

SFSFSFSFSFSFSF

SF
SF

SF

SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF

SF
SF

SF
SF

SF
SF

SF
SF

SF
SF

SF
SF

BM 1

W

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE OE OE OE
OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
EOE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

FO

FO

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W W W W W W W W W

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA

PA Smith Hotel, LLC Lot
5 & Part of Lot 4 Block
J of the H&TC RR
Addition Instrument No.
310337 R.P.R.G.C.

Willie S.
Baldobino, et ux
Called 5988
Sq.Ft.  1072/534
R.P.R.G.C.

BM 2

21
3

213

214

215

213 214

215

21
4

214

PROP. SILT FENCE

PROP. SILT FENCE

PROP. SILT FENCE

TEMP CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA
SEE DETAIL ON SHEET C601

TEMP CONSTRUCTION EXIT
SEE DETAIL ON SHEET C601

TEMP CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE
SEE DETAIL ON SHEET C601

21
1 

S 
10

TH
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

N
A

VA
SO

TA
, T

X.
 7

78
68

BMPROJECT BENCHMARK:

BM 1:
A RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE BASE OF A
POWER POLE 5' SOUTHEAST OF THE
FIRE HYDRANT ON 11TH STREET.
ELEVATION =  213.60'

BM 2:
A 60D NAIL 32' SOUTHWEST OF THE
EXISTING ONE STORY METAL BUILDING.
ELEVATION =  213.66'

N

SCALE: 1"= 10'
0 10 20 30

CAUTION: CONTACT TEXAS 811 AND LOCAL UTILITY
PROVIDERS TO LOCATE EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO

CONSTRUCTION.
CONTACT GESSNER ENGINEERING

IF CONFLICTS OCCUR.

ISSUE DATE:

PROJECT #:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

REVISIONS

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

CORPORATE OFFICE
401 W. 26TH STREET, SUITE 3

BRYAN, TEXAS 77840
1-877-GESSNER (437-7637)

www.gessnerengineering.com

FIRM REGISTRATION NUMBERS:
TBPE F-7451, TBPLS F-10193910

ER, NF

SH

12/02/2021

21-0293

EROSION CONTROL PLAN

C200

CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE,
INSTALLED PER DETAIL

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING CONTOURS

PROPOSED CONTOURS

EXISTING FLOW PATH

PROPOSED FLOW PATH

SILT FENCE,
INSTALLED PER DETAIL

PROPOSED DAM EROSION
CONTROL, LOG- 18"

PROPOSED ROCK FILTER DAM
TYPE 3

LEGEND

SF SF

340

340

RFD3

CL-D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
132894

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAUN J. HANSON



PP

PPPP

FH

PP

PP

BM 1
PP

W

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE OE OE OE
OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
EOE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

EXISTING
1 STORY METAL BUILDING

E

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

FO

FO

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W W W W W W W W W

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA

PA Smith Hotel, LLC Lot
5 & Part of Lot 4 Block
J of the H&TC RR
Addition Instrument No.
310337 R.P.R.G.C.

Willie S.
Baldobino, et ux
Called 5988
Sq.Ft.  1072/534
R.P.R.G.C.

BM 2

EX. +/- 54' OF CURB TO BE REMOVED AND
PAVEMENT SAW CUT TO INSTALL A
CONCRETE TO ASPHALT J JOINT

EX.  +/- 54' OF PAVEMENT SAW
CUT TO INSTALL A CONCRETE

TO ASPHALT J JOINT

EX. DRIVEWAY TO BE
REMOVED

EX. PAVEMENT TO BE  EXCAVATED
 AT LEAST 2' TO REMOVE DEBRIS

EX. POWER POLE
TO BE REMAIN

CAUTION! EX. OVERHEAD
ELECTRIC TO REMAIN

CAUTION! EX. RETAINING
WALLS TO REMAIN

CAUTION! EX. POWER POLES
TO REMAIN

ABANDONED ROW

EX. TRAIN SHED
TO REMAIN

EX. RAILROAD CROSSING
 SIGN TO REMOVED

EX.GUY WIRE TO BE REMOVED

EX.GUY WIRE TO REMAIN

EX.GUY WIRE TO BE REMOVED

EX. SERVICE POWER POLE
TO BE REMOVED.

COORDINATE WITH
FRANCHISE UTILITIES

CAUTION! EX. WATERLINE
TO REMAIN

21
1 

S 
10

TH
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

N
A

VA
SO

TA
, T

X.
 7

78
68

BMPROJECT BENCHMARK:

BM 1:
A RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE BASE OF A
POWER POLE 5' SOUTHEAST OF THE
FIRE HYDRANT ON 11TH STREET.
ELEVATION =  213.60'

BM 2:
A 60D NAIL 32' SOUTHWEST OF THE
EXISTING ONE STORY METAL BUILDING.
ELEVATION =  213.66'

N

SCALE: 1"= 10'
0 10 20 30

CAUTION: CONTACT TEXAS 811 AND LOCAL UTILITY
PROVIDERS TO LOCATE EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO

CONSTRUCTION.
CONTACT GESSNER ENGINEERING

IF CONFLICTS OCCUR.

ISSUE DATE:

PROJECT #:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

REVISIONS

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

CORPORATE OFFICE
401 W. 26TH STREET, SUITE 3

BRYAN, TEXAS 77840
1-877-GESSNER (437-7637)

www.gessnerengineering.com

FIRM REGISTRATION NUMBERS:
TBPE F-7451, TBPLS F-10193910

ER, NF

SH

12/02/2021

21-0293

DEMOLITION PLAN

C300

LEGEND

DEMOLITION AREA

EXISTING PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
132894

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAUN J. HANSON



213

213

214

215

214

214

215

21
5

214213

PPPP

FH

PP

PP

BM 1
PP

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO

OE

OE

OE

OE OE OE OE OEOE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
EOE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

OE OE OE OE OE OE OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

EXISTING
1 STORY METAL BUILDING

PP
E

W
W

W
W

W

FO

W W W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W

SA
SA

SA
SA

BM 2

CN: 93

AC:0.06
B1

CN: 91

AC:0.28
A1

START OF 130' OF SHEET FLOW
@ 1.90% SLOPE A1 TC: 2.90 MIN.

START OF 84' OF SHEET FLOW
@ 1.27% SLOPE B1 TC: 3.40 MIN.

POE: A

POE: B

LP LP

LP

LP

UEUE

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE UE UE UE UE

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE UE UE UE UE

WW

U
E

U
E

UE UE UE UE UE UE

U
E

UE

U
E

213

213

214

215

214

214

215

21
5

214213

PPPP

FH

PP

PP

BM 1
PP

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO

OE

OE

OE

OE OE OE OE OEOE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
EOE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

OE OE OE OE OE OE OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

EXISTING
1 STORY METAL BUILDING

PP
E

W
W

W
W

W

FO

W W W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W

SA
SA

SA
SA

BM 2

CN: 91

AC:0.28
A1

CN: 93

AC:0.06
B1

START OF 210' OF SHALLOW
CONC. GUTTER FLOW @ 0.95%
SLOPE A1 TC: 1.77 MIN

START OF 84' OF SHEET FLOW
@ 1.27% SLOPE B1 TC: 3.40 MIN.

START OF 51' OF SHEET FLOW
@ 0.16% SLOPE A1 TC: 7.79 MIN.

POE: A

POE: B

21
3

214

213

214

21
1 

S 
10

TH
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

N
A

VA
SO

TA
, T

X.
 7

78
68

BMPROJECT BENCHMARK:

BM 1:
A RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE BASE OF A
POWER POLE 5' SOUTHEAST OF THE
FIRE HYDRANT ON 11TH STREET.
ELEVATION =  213.60'

BM 2:
A 60D NAIL 32' SOUTHWEST OF THE
EXISTING ONE STORY METAL BUILDING.
ELEVATION =  213.66'

N

CAUTION: CONTACT TEXAS 811 AND LOCAL UTILITY
PROVIDERS TO LOCATE EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO

CONSTRUCTION.
CONTACT GESSNER ENGINEERING

IF CONFLICTS OCCUR.

ISSUE DATE:

PROJECT #:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

REVISIONS

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

CORPORATE OFFICE
401 W. 26TH STREET, SUITE 3

BRYAN, TEXAS 77840
1-877-GESSNER (437-7637)

www.gessnerengineering.com

FIRM REGISTRATION NUMBERS:
TBPE F-7451, TBPLS F-10193910

ER, NF

SH

12/02/2021

21-0293

DRAINAGE AREA MAP

C400

DRAINAGE AREA BOUNDARY

DRAINAGE AREA LABEL AND
FLOW DIRECTION

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING CONTOURS

PROPOSED CONTOURS

FLOW PATH

EXISTING PAVEMENT

A1

LEGEND

340

340

PRE-DEVELOPED DRAINAGE AREA MAP
(SCALE 1": 20')

0
SCALE: 1"= 20'

20 40 60

POST-DEVELOPED DRAINAGE AREA MAP
(SCALE 1": 20')

POST DEVELOPMENT PEAK RUNOFF

AREA
SIZE

(SQFT) C TC (MIN)
2 YR

(CFS)
5 YR

(CFS)
10 YR
(CFS)

25 YR
(CFS)

50 YR
(CFS)

100 YR
(CFS)

A1 13430 0.69 10 1.35 1.64 1.84 2.10 2.38 2.48

B1 1348 0.40 10 0.08 0.10 0.11 0.12 0.14 0.14

PRE DEVELOPMENT PEAK RUNOFF

AREA
SIZE

(SQFT) C TC (MIN)
2 YR

(CFS)
5 YR

(CFS)
10 YR
(CFS)

25 YR
(CFS)

50 YR
(CFS)

100 YR
(CFS)

A1 12042 0.60 10 1.05 1.28 1.44 1.64 1.86 1.94

B1 2555 0.65 10 0.24 0.29 0.33 0.37 0.42 0.44

POST DEVELOPED TIME OF CONCENTRATION
CITY OF NAVASOTA A1 B1

SHEET FLOW
COVER TYPE CONCRETE CONCRETE

MANNINGS ROUGHNESS
COEFFICIENT n 0.013 0.013

FLOW LENGTH (FT) L 51.00 84.00
TWO-YEAR, 24 HR

RAINFALL (IN) P2 4.42 4.42

LAND SLOPE (FT/FT) s 0.0016 0.0127
TRAVEL TIME (MIN) Tt 7.79 3.40

SHALLOW CONCENTRATED FLOW
FLOW LENGTH (FT) L 210.00

WATERCOURSE SLOPE
(FT/FT) s 0.0095

PAVED OR UNPAVED PAVED
AVERAGE VELOCITY (FT/S) V 1.98

TRAVEL TIME (MIN) Tt 1.77
RESULTS

TIME OF CONCENTRATION
(HR) Tc 0.159 0.057

TIME OF CONCENTRATION
(MIN) Tc 9.56 3.40

DESIGN TIME OF
CONCENTRATION (MIN) Tc 10.00 10.00

PRE DEVELOPED TIME OF CONCENTRATION
CITY OF NAVASOTA A1 B1

SHEET FLOW
COVER TYPE CONCRETE CONCRETE

MANNINGS ROUGHNESS
COEFFICIENT n 0.013 0.013

FLOW LENGTH (FT) L 130.00 84.00
TWO-YEAR, 24 HR

RAINFALL (IN) P2 4.42 4.42

LAND SLOPE (FT/FT) s 0.0190 0.0127
TRAVEL TIME (MIN) Tt 2.90 3.40

SHALLOW CONCENTRATED FLOW
FLOW LENGTH (FT) L

WATERCOURSE SLOPE
(FT/FT) s

PAVED OR UNPAVED
AVERAGE VELOCITY (FT/S) V

TRAVEL TIME (MIN) Tt
RESULTS

TIME OF CONCENTRATION
(HR) Tc 0.048 0.057

TIME OF CONCENTRATION
(MIN) Tc 2.90 3.40

DESIGN TIME OF
CONCENTRATION (MIN) Tc 10.00 10.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
132894

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAUN J. HANSON



LP LP

LP

LP

COVERED PARKING

12

9

10 TH STREET
(APPROX. 140.0  R.O.W.)
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

HOLLAND STREET
(APPROX. 80.0 R.O.W.)
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

RAILROAD CROSSING
(APPROX. 160.0' R.O.W.)

U
E

UEUEUE

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE

W

1

WWWWW

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE UE

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

UE

GFI

GFI

GFI

GFI

UE UE

U
E

U
E

U
E

PP

PPPP

FH

PP

PP

BM 1
PP

W

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE OE OE OE
OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
EOE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

O
E

EXISTING
1 STORY METAL BUILDING

E

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

FO

FO

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W W W W W W W W W

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA

PA Smith Hotel, LLC Lot
5 & Part of Lot 4 Block
J of the H&TC RR
Addition Instrument No.
310337 R.P.R.G.C.

Willie S.
Baldobino, et ux
Called 5988
Sq.Ft.  1072/534
R.P.R.G.C.

BM 2

TC 212.78

TC 213.51

TC 213.62

TC 214.11

TC 214.15

TC 214.18 TC 214.66

TC 214.71

TC 214.78

TC 213.82

TC 213.75 TC 214.39
TC 214.47

TC 214.54

TC 214.72

TC 214.73

TC 214.75

TC 214.76

TC 214.83

TC 214.14

TC 214.11

TC 213.51

TC 213.05

SW 213.38SW 213.34

SW 213.45

SW 213.52

SW 212.85

SW 213.86

SW 213.93

SW 214.54

SW 214.47

SW 214.38

SW 214.47

FG 213.28

ME 214.33

TC 214.33
ME 214.41

TP 214.44

TP 213.50

SW 213.48

SW 213.42

TC 214.53

TP 214.04

BR 212.70

BR 212.74

TR 212.78
TR 212.83BR 212.47

BR 212.45 TR 212.80

TR 212.75

-0
.21%

-1.00%

-1
.3

1%

-0
.2

9%

-4.71%

-9.30%

-7
.1

9%

5.0'

5.
0'

SW 213.26

ME @ TP
213.50

ME @ TP
213.80

ME @ TP
214.08

ME @ TP
212.40

ME @ TP
212.42

ME @ TP
212.52

213

213

213

214
214

214214 214

21
4

214

214

215

215

215

215

215

213

213

214

214

214

214

214

-4
.5

8%

-3.50%

-1.04%

-0.46%

-0.85%

TC 214.50

TC 214.41

PROP. SPILL CURB SEE
 DETAILS ON SHEET C601

4" PVC SLEEVE CONDUIT

PROP. THICKENED EDGE CONNECTION
 DETAILS ON SHEET C601

PROP. THICKENED EDGE CONNECTION
 DETAILS ON SHEET C601

PROP. SPILL CURB SEE
 DETAILS ON SHEET C601

PROP. CONC FLUME
VARIABLE WIDTH

TC 213.57

FG 214.33

FG 214.33

TC 214.67

FG 214.13

FG 214.33

TC 214.21

FG 213.80

-1
.3

6%

TP 213.62

-0
.4

7%

2.50%

2.
50

%
0.

97
%

0.98% 0.98% 0.83%2.37%

0.96%

PROP. SPILL CURB SEE
 DETAILS ON SHEET C601

TC 214.06

TC 213.58

TC 214.07

TC 214.74

TP 213.33

TC 214.802.
00

%

TC 214.51

TC 214.44

INSTALL 8"X1" SERVICE SADDLE

SW 213.43

1.
34

%
-2.33%-0.30%

3" PVC SLEEVE CONDUIT 4"  SLEEVE CONDUIT
W/ 2" ELECT PVC

-1.31%

-1.50%

-0.89%

-0.92%

-0.93%

-1.31%

-1.97%

-1.42%

-1.67%

SW 213.82

SW 213.51

SW 213.49

SW 213.51

INSTALL 1" IRR. METER (PUBLIC)

PUBLIC PLANTER BEDS
SEE SHEET C601 FOR DETAILS

INSTALL BACK FLOW PREVENTER

1"  PVC COMS LOOP

1"  PVC

DISH 15' HT

1 1/4"  PVC

SECURITY CAM SYS W/
SUB PANEL 20' METAL
BRONZE 4"X4" 90-110 MPH

1 1/2"  PVC FOR
SECURITY CAM

1 1/4"  PVC

PED MOUNT
30-50 RV
120V GFI

DUAL AUTO
CHARGE EV

1 1/2"  PVC

200 AMP RACK
METER SERVICE

200 AMP 24 SPACE
3R PANEL
SURGE PROTECTION

GATE OPENER

GATE OPENER

GATE OPENER

1" PVC

SECURITY CAMERA

SECURITY CAMERA

4" PVC SLEEVE CONDUIT

21
1 

S 
10

TH
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

N
A

VA
SO

TA
, T

X.
 7

78
68

BMPROJECT BENCHMARK:

BM 1:
A RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE BASE OF A
POWER POLE 5' SOUTHEAST OF THE
FIRE HYDRANT ON 11TH STREET.
ELEVATION =  213.60'

BM 2:
A 60D NAIL 32' SOUTHWEST OF THE
EXISTING ONE STORY METAL BUILDING.
ELEVATION =  213.66'

N

SCALE: 1"= 10'
0 10 20 30

CAUTION: CONTACT TEXAS 811 AND LOCAL UTILITY
PROVIDERS TO LOCATE EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO

CONSTRUCTION.
CONTACT GESSNER ENGINEERING

IF CONFLICTS OCCUR.

ISSUE DATE:

PROJECT #:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

REVISIONS

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

CORPORATE OFFICE
401 W. 26TH STREET, SUITE 3

BRYAN, TEXAS 77840
1-877-GESSNER (437-7637)

www.gessnerengineering.com

FIRM REGISTRATION NUMBERS:
TBPE F-7451, TBPLS F-10193910

ER, NF

SH

12/02/2021

21-0293

GRADING & UTILITY PLAN

C500

EXISTING CONTOURS

PROPOSED CONTOURS

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED SWALE WITH
DIRECTION OF FLOW ARROWS

PROPOSED BREAKLINE

340

340

     BR PROPOSED FINISHED GRADE AT BOTTOM OF RAMP

     BS PROPOSED FINISHED GRADE AT BOTTOM OF STAIR
 
     BW PROPOSED FINISHED GRADE AT BASE OF WALL

     FG PROPOSED FINISHED GRADE ELEVATION

     FL PROPOSED FLOWLINE ELEVATION

     G PROPOSED GUTTER FLOWLINE ELEVATION

    GB PROPOSED GRADE BREAK

    JB PROPOSED TOP OF JUNCTION BOX ELEVATION

ME @ SW MATCH EXISTING SIDEWALK ELEVATION***

ME @ TC MATCH EXISTING TOP OF CURB ELEVATION***

ME @ TP MATCH EXISTING AT TOP OF PAVEMENT ELEVATION***

     SW PROPOSED TOP OF PAVEMENT AT SIDEWALK
ELEVATION

     TC PROPOSED TOP OF CURB ELEVATION

     TG PROPOSED TOP OF GRATE ELEVATION

     TP PROPOSED TOP OF PAVEMENT ELEVATION

     TR PROPOSED TOP OF RAMP ELEVATION

     TW PROPOSED TOP OF WALL ELEVATION

***CONTACT GESSNER ENGINEERING WITH ANY DISCREPANCIES
BETWEEN THE ME ELEVATION CALLED OUT ON THE PLANS AND
FIELD CONDITIONS

LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
132894

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAUN J. HANSON



21
1 

S 
10

TH
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

N
A

VA
SO

TA
, T

X.
 7

78
68

ISSUE DATE:

PROJECT #:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

REVISIONS

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

CORPORATE OFFICE
401 W. 26TH STREET, SUITE 3

BRYAN, TEXAS 77840
1-877-GESSNER (437-7637)

www.gessnerengineering.com

FIRM REGISTRATION NUMBERS:
TBPE F-7451, TBPLS F-10193910

ER, NF

SH

12/02/2021

21-0293

NOTES:
1. SIDEWALK PLACEMENT SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH B/CS UNIFIED DESIGN GUIDELINES
2. FINISH: LIGHT BROOM FINISH. JOINTS TO BE TOOLED 1" DEEP AT AN INTERVAL EQUAL TO THE SIDEWALK WIDTH.

EXPANSION JOINTS @ 40' O.C., CONTRACTION JOINTS @ 4' O.C.
3. DOWEL IN AND TIE TO ANY CONCRETE STRUCTURE ADJACENT TO SIDEWALK (DRIVEWAY, INLET BOX, CURB, JUNCTION

BOX, ETC.)
4. COMPACTION: COMPACTED SUBGRADE MATERIAL COMPACTED TO A DENSITY AT LEAST 98% OF MAX DRY DENSITY AS

DETERMINED BY PROCTOR COMPACTION TEST ASTM D698 (STANDARD) AND SHALL BE 0-4% WET OF THE OPTIMUM
MOISTURE CONTENT.

5. A MINIMUM CLEAR PEDESTRIAN WIDTH AS DEFINED BY TAS AND ADA SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR ENTIRE LENGTH OF
SIDEWALK

SEAL WITH EXPANSION
JOINT MATERIAL

1
4" R 3

4"

SMOOTH DOWEL BAR 12"Ø X 18", 12"
O.C. (COATED WITH HEAVY GREASE)

4"

RECYCLED MATERIAL, 12" THICK AS
MANUFACTURED BY J.D. RUSSEL

CO. OR APPROVED EQUAL
3" LONG METAL OR PLASTIC CAP,
INSIDE DIAMETER TO BE 116" GREATER
THAN DIAMETER OF DOWEL BAR. CAP
MUST BE LONG ENOUGH TO COVER 2"
OF DOWEL AND HAVE STOP SO END OF
CAP IS 1" FROM END OF BAR.

SIDEWALK EXPANSION & CONSTRUCTION JOINT

1
8" TO 316"

SAWED OR FORMED, SEAL WITH
EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL, MIN.

3
8" R

4"

SIDEWALK CONTRACTION JOINT

CONCRETE SIDEWALK
NTS

4"4"

20
"

4"X4" MIN. TRENCH

ALLOW 2.5' TO 5' AT TOE OF
SLOPE FOR SEDIMENT TO
ACCUMULATE. ALIGN FENCE
ALONG SLOPE CONTOURS

8" OF FILTER FABRIC TO EXTEND INTO
A TRENCH AND BE ANCHORED W/
COMPACTED BACKFILL

SEDIMENT CONTROL FABRIC
FASTENED SECURELY TO
T-POST & WIRE MESH

2"X4" WIRE MESH
FASTENED TO T-POST

METAL T-POST AS
REQ'D TO MAINTAIN.

SPACED 6' APART

NATURAL GROUND

SILT FENCE AND/OR HAY
BALES TO BE USED IN

AREAS OF DRAINAGE FLOW

DIRECTION OF
FLOW

SILT CONTROL FENCE
NTS

24"

15"6"

5"
6"

7"

4"

12
"

3"

3"

3"

3"

3"

2"

3"

2"

NOTE:
TYPE "G" EXPANSION JOINTS IN CURB & GUTTER SHALL
BE SPACED AT A MAXIMUM DISTANCE OF 40' APART
AND AT ALL RADIUS POINTS, P.T.S, AND P.C.S. TYPE "B"
CONTRACTION JOINTS IN CURB & GUTTER SHALL BE
SPACED AT A MAXIMUM DISTANCE OF 10' APART.

- #4 BARS
- 3/4" x 18" SMOOTH
  EXPANSION DOWELS

1
4" R. (TYP.)

3" R.

TYPICAL COMBINED CURB & GUTTER SECTION
NTS

DETAILS

C600

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
132894

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAUN J. HANSON



21
1 

S 
10

TH
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

N
A

VA
SO

TA
, T

X.
 7

78
68

ISSUE DATE:

PROJECT #:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

REVISIONS

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION

CORPORATE OFFICE
401 W. 26TH STREET, SUITE 3

BRYAN, TEXAS 77840
1-877-GESSNER (437-7637)

www.gessnerengineering.com

FIRM REGISTRATION NUMBERS:
TBPE F-7451, TBPLS F-10193910

ER, NF

SH

12/02/2021

21-0293

DETAILS

C601

NOTES:
1. CONCRETE REINFORCING SHOULD BE PLACED APPROXIMATELY 13 THE SLAB

THICKNESS BELOW SURFACE OF THE SLAB, BUT NOT LESS THAN 2".
2. 6" CONCRETE SHOULD HAVE A MINIMUM 28-DAY COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF

4,000 PSI PER GEOTECHINCAL REPORT
3. THE EXPOSED SUBGRADE SHOULD BE SCARIFIED TO AN 6-INCH DEPTH AND

TREATED WITH HYDRATED LIME. LIME TREATED SUBGRADE SHOULD BE
RECOMPACTED TO A MINIMUM OF 95% OF THE MAXIMUM DENSITY AS
DETERMINED BY THE MODIFIED MOISTURE/DENSITY RELATION (ASTM D 1557) AT
A MOISTURE CONTENT WITHIN THE RANGE OF OPTIMUM 3% POINTS ABOVE THE
OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT AS DETERMINED BY TEX-114-E.

4. INSTALL GEOGRID REINFORCEMENT TENSAR TX-5 OR EQUIVALENT PRODUCT
BETWEEN THE PAVEMENT AND SUBGRADE PER GEOTECHINCAL REPORT.

CONCRETE PAVEMENT
NTS

7"

12"8"

CONCRETE TO ASPHALT THICKENED EDGE
NTS

EXISTING HMAC

10
"

BRICK PAVER LAY DOWN
NTS

4" X 8" X 2-3/8" THICK CONCRETE PAVERS.
HOLLANDS OLD TOWN BLEND BY PAVESTONE
OR APPROVED EQUAL. INSTALL PER MANUFACTURES
RECOMMENDATIONS IN RUNNING BOND PATTERN
MUST MATCH CITY'S PREVIOUSLY CONSTRUCTED
DOWNTOWN AREA PROJECT

FILTER FABRIC, TREVIRA
SPINBOND 1114, OR
APPROVED EQUAL

1" SAND BED

4"
 M

IN

1' 1'

3"

3'

2 
3 8"

REINFORCED CONCRETE PAVER
BASE. REINFORCED TO MATCH

THAT OF SIDEWALK. POUR
MONOLITHIC WITH SIDEWALKS.

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

3"

3"

6 1/2"

6' MIN.
8' MAX.

24" FROM EDGE
OF WALKWAY

EQ. EQ.

TYP. PARKING SPACE
(9' MIN. WIDTH)

6"HOLE FOR #4 REBAR DRILLED OR
SET INTO PAVEMENT AS PER

COUNTY STANDARDS. GROUT TOP
OF HOLE

SET REINF. ROD MIN. 18" INTO
PAVEMENT AND SECURE AS PER

COUNTY REQUIREMENTS.

TYP. WHEEL STOP
NTS

1

REF. PLAN
VARIABLE WIDTH

6"

18" TOE DOWN
(ALSO AT FLUME ENDS)

FLUME SECTION
NTS

NOTES:
1. CONCRETE 28 DAY COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH 3,000 PSI OR GREATER.
2. SAW CUT JOINTS SHALL BE PLACED 5' O-C AND SEALED

#3 BARS @ 12" O.C.E.W.

PROPERTY LINE

NO STEEPER
 THAN 2

TOP OF CURB

TOP OF PAVEMENT

NOTES

1. TECHLINE IRRIGATION DRIPPER TUBING
TCD9-12, SET 2" BELOW SURFACE OF
PLANTER BOX.

2. AIR  VACUUM RELIEF VALVE IN SMALL
ENCLOSURE.

3. LIGHT WEIGHT PLANTER MIX. PROVIDED
BY CITY, COORDINATE INSTALLATION.

4. MIRAFI 140-N OR APPROVED EQUAL.
5. 12" THICK WASHED BULLROCK GRAVEL,

1/2" TO 3/4" DIA.
6. 8" SQUARE OPENING IN CONCRETE

SIDEWALK.
7. 1/2" FLEX PIPE
8. 1/2" PVC NIPPLE
9. 1/2" IRRIGATION LATERAL
10. 12" DIA. X 6' DEEP DRILLED FILLED W/ 3/4"

- 1" DIA WASHED RIVER GRAVEL FOR
DRAINAGE.

11. PRE CAST CONCRETE PLANTER BOX
(PROVIDED BY CITY, INSTALLED BY
CONTRACTOR)

12. 4" MIN. THICKNESS REINFORCED
CONCRETE.

1

1 10/15/2021 Bid Revisions

PLANTER BOX DRIP IRRIGATION
 NTSLIGHT POLE BASE

 NTS

NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE
WITH ENTERGY TO ENSURE
CONDUIT AND ANCHOR BOLTS
ARE IN THE CORRECT POSITION
PRIOR TO PLACING LIGHT POLE
BASE.

2. LIGHT POLE TYPE IS WHATLEY
CATALOG NUMBER
CF50-D6M-12-AB-DBZ-30-30

7"

#4 BARS @ 18" OCEW

STABILIZE SUBGRADE PER GEOTECHNICAL
ENGINEER'S RECOMMENDATIONS

COMPACTED SUBGRADE
PER SPECIFICATIONS

1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
132894

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAUN J. HANSON



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 9. AGENDA DATE: February 14,
2022

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: JW
 

Presentation, discussion, and possible action on
appointments to boards and commissions.[Lupe Diosdado,
Development Services Director]
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City Council appointed members to various Boards and
Commissions back in September 2021. Clarence Lewis, Jr. has
been a member of the Keep Navasota Beautiful Commission for a
couple of years. Staff did not receive a response from Mr. Lewis at
the time appointments were being made. He has since reached
out to city staff and would like to serve again.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
N/A
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends appointing Clarence Lewis, Jr. to the Keep
Navasota Beautiful Commission for a two-year term ending in
September 2023.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 10. AGENDA DATE: February 14,
2022

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: JW
 

Presentation, discussion and possible action on the first
reading of Ordinance No. 993-22, declining to approve the change
in rates requested in Entergy Texas, Inc.'s ('ETI' or 'Company')
Statement of Intent filed with the City of Navasota on January 31,
2022. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:

Jason Weeks, City Manager



On or about January 31, 2022, Entergy Texas, Inc. filed an
application for approval of two (2) voluntary renewable option
tariffs, Riders SVRO (Small Volume Renewable Option) and LVRO
(Large Volume Renewable Option), with each of the Cities in its
service area and concurrently with the Public Utility Commission of
Texas ("PUC"). Because of the limited timelines, the Lawton Law
Firm is recommending that Cities adopt a Rate Ordinance denying
Entergy's application. Cities have until March 28, 2022 to file a
Rate Ordinance denying this application.

Entergy plans to join Cities’ rate decisions with its concurrent
application pending with the PUC, and the PUC will make the final
determination to approve or deny Entergy's. Lawton Law Firm has
intervened in the PUC's proceedings and will represent the Cities’
interests there.
In its application, Entergy requests approval to implement two (2)
voluntary green pricing options, Riders SVRO and LVRO. Rider
SVRO stands for Small Volume Renewable Option and is for
customers using up to 499,999 kilowatt-hours per month. Rider
LVRO stands for Large Volume Renewable Option and is for
customers that use more than 500,000 kilowatt-hours per month.
Both Riders are voluntary offerings that give customers the ability
to match some or all of their monthly electricity usage with
renewable energy credits that are purchased by Entergy and
retired on the customer’s behalf. The monthly Rider SVRO charge
for a residential customer using approximately 1,000 kWh per
month would range from approximately $3.83 to $10.10,
depending on the level of participation they choose. Again, the
program is completely voluntary, so no customer will be charged
under Riders SVRO and LVRO unless they opt in.
 
The PUC has original jurisdiction over Entergy service areas
outside the City limits and appellate jurisdiction over City
decisions. See Tex. Util. Code § 32.001.
 
 
 

 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
N/A
 



STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the first reading of Ordinance
No. 993-22, declining to approve the change in rates requested in
Entergy Texas, Inc.'s ('ETI' or 'Company') Statement of Intent
filed with the City of Navasota on January 31, 2022.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 993-22
2. Letter from Lawton Law Firm

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1644015051x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1644014532x_at.pdf


 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 993-22 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, 
TEXAS, (or “City”) declining to approve the change in rates requested 
in Entergy Texas, Inc.’s (“ETI” or “Company”) Statement of Intent filed 
with the City on January 31, 2022, AND FINDING AND DETERMINING 
THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH THIS ORDINANCE WAS CONSIDERED 
WAS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH TEXAS LAW. 
 
 
WHEREAS, ETI filed with the City its Statement of Intent and Application for 

Approval of Two Voluntary Renewable Option Tariffs, Rider SVRO and Rider LVRO 
(“Statement of Intent”); 

 
WHEREAS, the City has duly noticed its consideration of the Company’s 

Statement of Intent and is acting within its authority under applicable law; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

NAVASOTA, TEXAS THAT the City DECLINES to approve any and all changes in rates 
requested by ETI and included in ETI’s Statement of Intent and that ETI’s proposed 
new rates should not be made effective. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE FIRST READING THIS 14TH DAY OF 
FEBRUARY, 2022 

 
                                                                          
                                                         ________________________ 
                                                                  BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED ON SECOND READING THIS 28TH DAY OF 
FEBRUARY, 2022 

 
 
                                                            ________________________ 
                                                                    BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



1 
CONFIDENTIAL/PRIVILEGED ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION 

 

 
CONFIDENTIAL/PRIVILEGED 
ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION 

 
February 4, 2022 

 
Via E-Mail 
 
Mr. Richard G. Baker 
City Attorney – City of Anahuac 
P.O. Box 10066 
Liberty, Texas 77575 
 

Ms. Sharae Reed 
City Attorney – City of Beaumont 
P.O. Box 3827 
Beaumont, Texas 77704 
 

Mr. Kyle Hayes 
City Manager – City of Beaumont 
P.O. Box 3827 
Beaumont, Texas 77704 
 

Mr. Paul Fukuda 
City Attorney – Bridge City 
City Attorney – Pine Forest 
260 Rachal 
Post Office Box 846 
Bridge City, Texas 77611 
 

Mr. Stacy Williams 
Interim City Manager – City of Cleveland 
907 E. Houston 
Cleveland, Texas 77327 

Mr. David Olson 
City Attorney – City of Cleveland 
Wortham Tower, Suite 600 
2727 Allen Parkway 
Houston, Texas 77019 
 

Ms. Angela Smith 
City Secretary – City of Cleveland 
907 E. Houston 
Cleveland, Texas 77327  

Mr. Gary Scott 
City Attorney – City of Conroe 
P.O. Box 3066 
Conroe, Texas 77305 
 

Mayor Nyla Akin Dalhaus 
City of Cut and Shoot 
P.O. Box 7364 
Cut and Shoot, Texas 77306 

Amy L. Wade  
City Secretary – City of Cut and Shoot 
P.O. Box 7364 
Cut and Shoot, Texas 77306 

 

THE LAWTON LAW FIRM, P.C. 
 

12600 Hill Country Blvd., Suite R-275 • Austin, Texas 78738 • 512/322-0019 • Fax: 512/329-2604 



2 
CONFIDENTIAL/PRIVILEGED ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION 

Mr. Jeff Lambright 
Mayor – City of Dayton 
117 Cook Street 
Dayton, Texas 77535  
 

Mr. Steve Floyd 
City Manager – City of Dayton 
117 Cook Street 
Dayton, Texas 77535 

Mr. James Black 
City Attorney – City of Groves 
3535 Calder Avenue, Suite 310 
Beaumont, TX 77706 
 

Mr. D. E. Sosa 
City Manager – City of Groves  
P.O. Box 3286 
Port Arthur, Texas 77643 
 

Ms. Tina Paez 
City of Houston Administration & Regulatory 
Affairs Department (ARA) 
611 Walker, 13 th Floor 
Houston, Texas 77002 
 

Ms. Yushan Chang 
City of Houston Legal Department 
P.O. Box 368, Houston, Texas 77001-0368 
City Hall Annex, 4th Floor 
900 Bagby 
Houston, Texas 77002  
 

Mr. Leonard Schneider 
City Attorney – City of Huntsville 
City Attorney – City of Splendora 
Liles Parker PLLC 
2261 Northpark Dr., Suite 445  
Kingwood, TX 77339 
 

Mr. Aron Kulhavy 
City Manager – City of Huntsville 
1212 Ave. M 
Huntsville, Texas 77340 
 

Mr. Brandon Davis 
City Attorney – City of Liberty 
City Attorney – City of Dayton 
1517 Trinity 
Liberty, Texas 77575 
 

Mr. Tom Warner 
City Manager – City of Liberty 
1829 Sam Houston 
Liberty, Texas 77575 

Mr. Alan P. Petrov 
City Attorney – City of Montgomery 
Johnson Petrov LLP 
2929 Allen Parkway, Suite 3150 
Houston, Texas 77019 
 

Mr. Richard Tramm 
City Administrator – City of Montgomery 
101 Old Plantersville Road 
Montgomery, TX 77316 

Mr. Cary Bovey 
City Attorney – City of Navasota 
Bovey & Cochran, PLLC 
2251 Double Creek Dr., Suite 204 
Round Rock, Texas 78664 
 

Mr. Jason Weeks 
City Manager – City of Navasota 
202 E. Washington 
Navasota, Texas 77868 
 

Mr. Christopher Duque 
City Manager – City of Nederland 
P.O. Box 967 
Nederland, Texas 77627 

Mr. Jesse Branick 
City Attorney – City of Nederland 
221 Hwy. 69 South, Suite 100  
Nederland, Texas 77627 



3 
CONFIDENTIAL/PRIVILEGED ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION 

 
Ms. Elizabeth Harrell 
City Secretary – City of Oak Ridge North 
27424 Robinson Road 
Oak Ridge North, Texas 77385 
 

Ms. Heather Neeley  
City Manager – City of Oak Ridge North 
27424 Robinson Road 
Oak Ridge North, Texas 77385 
 

Mr. Guy Goodson 
City Attorney – City of Orange 
GERMER PLLC 
550 Fannin, Suite 400 
Beaumont, Texas 77701 

Mr. Mike Kunst 
City Manager – City of Orange 
812 North 16th Street 
P.O. Box 520 
Orange, Texas 77630 
 

Mr. Rodney Price 
City Attorney – City of Rose City 
P.O. Box 310 
Vidor, Texas 77670 

Mr. Jerry Hood 
City Administrator – City of Pinehurst 
2497 Martin Luther King Jr. Drive 
Orange, Texas 77630 
 

Mr. Tommy Gunn 
City Attorney – City of Pinehurst 
202 S. Border 
Orange, Texas 77630 
 

Ms. Val Tizeno 
City Attorney – City of Port Arthur 
P.O. Box 1089 
Port Arthur, Texas 77641  
 

Mr. Ronald Burton 
City Manager – City of Port Arthur 
P.O. Box 1089 
Port Arthur, Texas 77641  
 

Mr. Pete Steele 
City Attorney – City of Port Neches 
3120 Central Mall Drive 
Port Arthur, Texas 77642 
 

Mr. Andre’ Wimer 
City Manager – City of Port Neches 
P.O. Box 758  
Port Neches, Texas 77651 
 

Mr. Larry L. Foerster 
City Attorney – City of Roman Forest 
Darden, Fowler and Creighton, LLP 
414 West Phillips, Suite 100 
Conroe, Texas 77301 
 

Ms. Kathie Reyer 
City Administrator – City of Shenandoah 
29955 IH-45 N. 
Shenandoah, Texas 77381 
 

Mr. Solomon Freimuth 
City Attorney – City of Silsbee 
P.O. Box 186 
Port Neches, Texas 77651 
 
 

Ms. DeeAnn Zimmerman 
City Manager – City of Silsbee 
105 South 3rd Street 
Silsbee, Texas 77656 
 

Mr. Alex Stelly 
City Attorney – City of Sour Lake 
2615 Calder Ave., Ste. 1070 
Beaumont, Texas 77702 
 



4 
CONFIDENTIAL/PRIVILEGED ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION 

Mr. Jack Provost 
City Manager – City of Sour Lake 
625 Hwy 105 W 
Sour Lake, Texas 77959  
 

Mayor Dorothy Welch 
City Attorney Leonard Schneider 
City of Splendora 
P.O. Box 1087 
Splendora, Texas  77372 
 

Mr. Robbie Hood 
City Manager - City of Vidor 
1395 N. Main St. 
Vidor, Texas 77662-3726 
 

Mr. Chris Leavins  
City Attorney – City of Vidor 
City Attorney – City of West Orange 
P.O. Box 4915 
Beaumont, Texas 77704-4915 
 

Mayor Randy Branch 
Mayor – City of West Orange 
2700 Western Avenue 
West Orange, TX 77630 
 

Mr. Michael S. Stelly 
City of West Orange, Texas 
2700 Austin Avenue 
West Orange, TX 77630 

Ms. Marissa Quintanilla  
City Secretary – City of Willis 
200 N. Bell 
Willis, Texas 77378 

 

 
Re: Entergy Texas, Inc.’s 2022 Application for Approval of Two Voluntary 

Renewable Option Tariffs, Rider SVRO and LVRO 
 
Dear Cities: 

 
On or about January 31, 2022, Entergy Texas Inc. (“Entergy” or “Company”) filed an 

application for approval of two voluntary renewable option tariffs, Riders SVRO and LVRO, with 
each of the Cities in its service area and concurrently with the Public Utility Commission of Texas 
(“Commission”). The Company has requested an effective date of March 28, 2022, for Riders 
SVRO and LVRO. Accordingly, Cities’ deadline to pass a Rate Ordinance is March 28, 2022.  

 
The Company plans to join Cities’ rate decisions with its concurrent application pending 

with the Commission, and the Commission will make the final determination to approve or deny 
the Company’s request.1 We have intervened in the Commission proceedings and will represent 
Cities’ interests there.  

 
In its application, ETI requests approval to implement two voluntary green pricing options, 

Riders SVRO and LVRO. Rider SVRO stands for Small Volume Renewable Option and is for 
customers using up to 499,999 kilowatt-hours per month. Rider LVRO stands for Large Volume 
Renewable Option and is for customers that use more than 500,000 kilowatt-hours per month. 
Both Riders are voluntary offerings that give customers the ability to match some or all of their 

 
1  The Commission has original jurisdiction over Entergy service areas outside the City limits and appellate 
jurisdiction over City decisions. See Tex. Util. Code § 32.001.  



5 
CONFIDENTIAL/PRIVILEGED ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION 

monthly electricity usage with renewable energy credits that are purchased by ETI and retired on 
the customer’s behalf. The monthly Rider SVRO charge for a residential customer using 
approximately 1,000 kWh per month would range from approximately $3.83 to $10.10, 
depending on the level of participation they choose. Again, the program is completely voluntary, 
so no customer will be charged under Riders SVRO and LVRO unless they opt in. 

 
We are currently reviewing the Company’s application to determine whether the 

Company’s request is consistent with PURA and Commission rules. Because of the limited 
timeline, we recommend that the Cities deny Entergy’s application in total by March 28, 2022. 
The Company provided a recommended Rate Ordinance denying Entergy’s application with its 
filing. We have reviewed it and have no edits or additions; therefore, we recommend that Cities 
pass the Company’s proposed ordinance. Please forward passed ordinances to us at 
molly@mayhallvandervoort.com and danlawtonlawfirm@gmail.com.  

 
If there are any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to call. 
 

     Sincerely, 

     /s/ Daniel J. Lawton 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 11. AGENDA DATE: February 14,
2022

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: JW
 

Presentation, discussion, and possible action on approval of
the order of election for the May 7, 2022 election to elect three
City Councilmembers to Positions 1, 2 and 3. [Susie Homeyer,
City Secretary]

Presentación, discusión, y posible acción sobre la aprobación del
orden de elección para las elecciones del 7 de mayo de 2022 para
elegir a tres concejales de la ciudad para los cargos 1, 2 y 3.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The law states that an election ordered by an authority of a
political subdivision shall be ordered not later than the 62nd day
before election day. The Navasota city charter states the City
Council members shall order the election at least 30 days before
the election. Therefore, the timeframe for issuing an election
order is January 24, 2022 through February 18, 2022.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approving the order of election for the May 7,
2022 election to elect three City Councilmembers to Positions 1, 2
and 3.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Order of Election

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1644251175x_at.pdf


1-2 
Prescribed by Secretary of State 
Sections 3.004, 3.005, 3.006, 85.004, 85.006, 85.007 Texas Election Code   
11/2021 

ORDER OF GENERAL ELECTION FOR MUNICIPALITIES 
ORDEN DE ELECCIÓN GENERAL PARA MUNICIPOS 

 

An election is hereby ordered to be held on _____/_____/________ for the purpose of voting on: 
             (date) 
(Por la presente se ordena celebrar una elección el _____/_____/_______ con el propósito de votar sobre.)                                                                                                                                        
                                                                           (fecha) 
 
 

List Offices/Propositions/Measures on the ballot (Enúmere los puestos/proposiciones/medidas oficiales en la boleta) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Early voting by personal appearance will be conducted each weekday at: 
(La votación adelantada en persona se llevará a cabo de lunes a viernes en:)  

 

The Main Early Voting Location (sitio principal de votación adelantada) 
Location (sitio)                                                           Hours (horas) 
  

 

Branch Early Voting Locations (sucursal sitios de votación adelantada) 
Location (sitio)                                                           Hours (horas) 
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Early voting by personal appearance will be conducted each weekend at: 
(La votación adelantada en persona se llevará a cabo en el fin de semana en:) 

  

The Main Early Voting Location (sitio principal de votación adelantada) 
Location (sitio)                                                           Hours (horas) 
  

 

Branch Early Voting Locations (sucursal sitios de votación adelantada) 
Location (sitio)                                                           Hours (horas) 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 



 
Applications for ballot by mail shall be mailed to: 

(Las solicitudes para boletas que se votarán adelantada por correo deberán enviarse a:) 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Name of Early Voting Clerk 
(Nombre del Secretario/a de la Votación Adelantada) 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Address (Dirección) 
 
_____________________________________________ 
City (Ciudad)                     Zip Code (Código Postal) 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Telephone Number (Número de teléfono) 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Email Address (Dirección de Correo Electrónico) 

 
                      _____________________________________________ 
                      Early Voting Clerk’s Website (Sitio web del Secretario/a de Votación Adelantada) 
 
 
 
Applications for Ballots by Mail (ABBMs) must be received no later than the close of business on: 
(Las solicitudes para boletas que se votarán adelantada por correo deberán recibirse no más tardar 
de las horas de negocio el:) 
 
 

_____/_____/________. 
         (date)(fecha) 

 
Federal Post Card Applications (FPCAs) must be received no later than the close of business on:  
(La Tarjeta Federal Postal de Solicitud deberán recibirse no más tardar de las horas de negocio el:) 
 

_____/_____/________.   
         (date)(fecha) 
 
 
 
Issued this ________ day of _______________________, 20 ______. 
                      (day)                                 (month)                            (year) 
 
(Emitida este día __________ de ______________________, 20 ______.) 
                                  (día)                               (mes)                             (año) 
   
 

______________________________________ 
Signature of Mayor (Firma del Alcalde) 

 
 
 

_________________________________                            _________________________________                 
Signature of Councilperson             Signature of Councilperson 
(Firma del Concejal)                                                                    (Firma del Concejal) 
 
_________________________________                            _________________________________                 
Signature of Councilperson             Signature of Councilperson 
(Firma del Concejal)                                                                    (Firma del Concejal) 
 
_________________________________                            _________________________________                 
Signature of Councilperson             Signature of Councilperson 
(Firma del Concejal)                                                                    (Firma del Concejal) 
 
_________________________________                            _________________________________                 
Signature of Councilperson             Signature of Councilperson 
(Firma del Concejal)                                                                    (Firma del Concejal) 
 
_________________________________                            _________________________________                 
Signature of Councilperson             Signature of Councilperson 
(Firma del Concejal)                                                                    (Firma del Concejal) 



 
 
Instruction Note:  A copy of this election order must be delivered to the County 
Clerk/Elections Administrator and Voter Registrar not later than 60 days before election day.  
Nota de Instrucción: Se deberá entregar una copia de esta orden de elección al/a la Secretario(a) del 
Condado/Administrador(a) de Elecciones y el/la Registrador(a) de Votantes a más tardar 60 días 
antes del día de elección.  



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 12. AGENDA DATE: February 14,
2022

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: JW
 

Presentation, discussion, and possible action on Resolution
No. 710-22, approving a joint election contract between the City
of Navasota, Grimes County and the Navasota Independent
School District. [Susie Homeyer, City Secretary]

Presentación, discusión, y posible acción sobre la Resolución No.
710-22, que aprueba un contrato electoral conjunto entre la
Ciudad de Navasota, el Condado de Grimes y el Distrito Escolar
Independiente de Navasota

 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
According to the Election Code, Section 61.012(c), school districts
must conduct a joint election with municipalities. The City began
this process in 2006 and it has worked very well. The City and
Navasota I.S.D. recommend to contract with the Election
Administrator for Grimes County in accordance with the Election
Code, Section 31.091. The City has a mutual agreement with the
County on the free use of election equipment and in turn the City
allows the County to use the Navasota Center free of charge for
their event needs. Also, staff recommends that the joint election
and early voting be held at the Navasota Center which is located
at 101 Stadium Drive.

For fiscal year 2021-22, the budgeted amount is $12,000 for
election costs. However, the estimated cost is $5,534.80.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



FY 2021-22 Budget - $12,000

Cost Estimate - $5,534.80

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 710-22, approving
a joint election contract between the City of Navasota, Grimes
County and the Navasota Independent School District.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution No. 710-22
2. Election Cost Estimate

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1643402964x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1643403110x_at.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 710-22 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 2022 JOINT ELECTION CONTRACT BETWEEN 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS,  

GRIMES COUNTY, TEXAS AND NAVASOTA  

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas, the Navasota Independent School District 

and the County of Grimes, Texas, desire to enter into a 2022 Joint Election Contract 

with Lucy Ybarra, as the Grimes County Election Administrator. 

 

 AND WHEREAS, the City Council Navasota, Texas desires to give authorization for 

said contract, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated 

herein for all purposes;  

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF NAVASOTA, 

TEXAS, THAT: 

 

 Said City Council authorizes the 2021 Joint Contract by and among the City of 

Navasota, Texas, Navasota Independent School District and Lucy Ybarra, Grimes 

County Election Administrator of Grimes County, Texas, for the conduct and 

supervision of the Joint Election on May 7, 2022, said contract attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 14TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 

 

 

______________________________ 

         BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

               

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                                              “EXHIBIT A” 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JOINT ELECTION AGREEMENT  

FOR  

GENERAL ELECTION for LOCAL SUBDIVISIONS (including SCHOOLS) 

 

This contract is made and entered into this the ______ day of ____________, 20____, by and between the City 

of Navasota, hereinafter referred to as “Entity,” and Lucy Ybarra County Election Administrator of Grimes 

County, Texas. All contracting entities are in agreement that elections referenced in this contract include 

elections scheduled for May 7, 2022, as well as any resulting runoffs. All election date references include early 

voting dates.  

 

For the purpose of the above-mentioned Joint Election Agreement, all Entities agree to utilize Early Voting and 

Election Day voting locations identified by Grimes County and the Elections Administrator.  

 

Now, therefore it is agreed that a joint election will be held by the Entity and Grimes County under 

the following terms and conditions: 

 

1) The Entity will contract with the Elections Administrator of Grimes County (“the Contracting 

Officer”) to perform various responsibilities to include election staffing for Early Voting, 

Election Day, Tabulation, and Ballot related duties in connection with the election on behalf of 

each of the entities participating in the election.  

2) Each entity agrees to share equally the expense of Early Voting and Election Day polling 

locations, to include staffing, supplies, equipment, and other related cost.  
3) Each entity agrees to share equally, the expense of ballot production, programming, shipment, 

and equipment predefinition.  

4) Entities agreeing to participate in the Joint Election agree that the Elections Administrator is the 

responsible party for determining election staff, polling locations, and possible consolidation of 

said polling locations for the Joint Election being held.  

5) If one entity cancels its election, the remaining entities holding an election will be responsible for 

all election costs incurred in the Joint Election.  

6) Each entity will identify a person(s) (limit of 2) to be the point of contact for the Contracting 

Officer. This person(s) will address concerns, follow up and questions from/for the Contracting 

Officer. Said person(s) will also serve as the point of contact to receive and then distribute the 

Joint Election results on Election Day. Each entity agrees that no other staff members will be 

given results or directed questions.  

 

The Contracting Officer shall be responsible for performing the following duties in 

relation to the Joint Election for Local Subdivisions:  

 

1) Contact owners or custodians of designated polling locations to arrange use in the Joint Election.  

2) Procure and distribute all necessary election supplies: required documents, maps, supplies needed 

to operate the election, equipment, signs, and ballots.  

3) Procure and prepare all necessary equipment for the election including:  

▪ Know Ink iPad for Voter Check In,  

▪ Verity Duo: Voting Booth & Ballot Scanner, and  

▪ Controller: Election Judges operating booth. 

4) Serve as the early voting clerk and provide deputy voting clerks to assist with early voting.  

5) Arrange, notify, and host training classes for all election staff working in said Joint Election.  

6) Arrange for use of Central Counting Station, Early Voting Ballot Board, including the Ballot By 

Mail team. 

7) Publish all required notices of Logic and Accuracy Testing and Election notices, as required by 

the Secretary of State posted guidelines.  

8) Assist in the general supervision of the election and provide advisory services as requested by the 

entities participating in the election.  

 

Whereas, upon agreement of the above-stated terms of the contract for the Joint Election, 

the Entity agrees to the following conditions regarding election costs and billing:  

 



____________________________________________ 

Signature 

 

____________________________________________ 

Date 

 

____________________________________________ 

Political Subdivision 

 

____________________________________________ 

Signature 

 

____________________________________________ 

Date 

 

Grimes County Elections Administrator    

                                                                      
 

1) The entity agrees to provide payment in full upon receipt of the final invoice and cost breakdown 

within 90 days of receipt.  

2) The entity agrees to receive the receipt and any additional cost evidence via email statement at the 

email address provided to the Contracting Officer by the entity. 

3) The Entity agrees that contract costs will include a 10% administrative fee to be paid directly to 

Grimes County- Elections Administration for administration and oversight of the Joint Election.   

4) Should the entity request an early voting location that is not a regularly-used location for early 

voting purposes, the requesting entity agrees to pay for all staffing and rental costs for the early 

voting period unless otherwise agreed on by the Contracting officer.  

 

The Contracting Officer agrees to provide the following:  

 

1) Immediate notice to all parties involved should any change in costs result in a higher rate of 5% 

or more of all costs related to the elections being held in the current contract year.  

2) Notice of Ballot drafts- schedule and review ballot drafts prior to ballot printing or programming 

with each entity participating in the joint election. (Said review may occur via electronic 

correspondence or, at the request of the entity, in person.)  

 

In the event of an emergency or severe circumstance such as a natural disaster, weather related 

emergencies, pandemic or health-related occurrences that could affect Grimes County, its 

voters, and employees- Grimes County reserves the right to terminate the participation of its 

personnel in the election. In such case, the county will provide all the necessary tools, 

equipment, and materials for the entity to host an election, but will not be responsible for 

staffing or administering said election. Any such determination will be made by Grimes 

County, in its sole discretion, with the input of the Texas Secretary of State.  

 

The parties hereto acknowledge that the Contracting Officer may enter a separate elections 

services contract with another political subdivision for any election conducted on the same day.  

 

APPROVED by the following parties, also identified as the participants of said election: 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 




	Regular Meeting
	Agenda Item No. 4 -  Staff Report:
(a) Update on Capital Improvements Project; [Jennifer Reyna, Director of Utilities]
(b) Recognition of Lessie Arrington - 50 years of service; [Mayor Bert Miller]
(c) Board and Commission update; and
(d) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]
	 VISION-MISSION-STRATEGIC PLAN - 2022
	 Planning Calendar
	 Municipal Court Report for 01/31/2022

	Agenda Item No. 5 -  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the regular agenda. [City Council]
Consent Items are:
A. Consider approval on the minutes for the month of January 2022;
B. Consider approval on the expenditures for the month of January 2022; and
C. Consider approval on the second reading of Ordinance No. 991-22, authorizing participation with Entergy Service Area Cities in matters concerning Entergy Texas, Inc. at the Public Utility Commission in 2022 and authorizing the hiring of lawyers and rate experts.
	 Minutes - 01/10/2022
	 Minutes - 01/12/2022
	 Minutes - 01/18/2022
	 Minutes - 01/24/2022
	 Expenditures for January 2022
	 Ordinance No. 991-22

	Agenda Item No. 6 -  Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and testimony regarding a zoning change application submitted by Mary Mable, representing the Navasota George Washington Carver High School Alumni Association for the property located at 1602 S La Salle, Navasota, Grimes County, TX, 77868. The zoning change application requests to change the zoning from PU: Public Use District to B-1: General Business District, for the operation of a Commercial Day Care Use.  The property affected is legally described as S8700 - Woodward, Block 1 & 2, Acres 3.098. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]
	 Staff Report

	Agenda Item No. 7 -  Presentation, discussion, and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 992-22, regarding a zoning change application submitted by Mary Mable, representing the Navasota George Washington Carver High School Alumni Association for the property located at 1602 S La Salle, Navasota, Grimes County, TX, 77868. The zoning change application requests to change the zoning from PU: Public Use District to B-1: General Business District, for the operation of a Commercial Day Care Use. The property affected is legally described as S8700 - Woodward, Block 1 & 2, Acres 3.098.[Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]
	 Ordinance No. 992-22

	Agenda Item No. 8 -  Presentation, discussion, and possible action on a development agreement with PA Smith Hotel, LLC for the development of sidewalks matching the downtown streetscapes in the 100 block of West Holland Street & 200 Block of South Tenth Street, located in Navasota, Grimes County, TX. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]
	 P. A. Smith Development Agreement

	Agenda Item No. 9 -  Presentation, discussion, and possible action on appointments to boards and commissions.[Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]
	Agenda Item No. 10 -  Presentation, discussion and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 993-22, declining to approve the change in rates requested in Entergy Texas, Inc.'s ('ETI' or 'Company') Statement of Intent filed with the City of Navasota on January 31, 2022. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]
	 Ordinance No. 993-22
	 Letter from Lawton Law Firm

	Agenda Item No. 11 -  Presentation, discussion, and possible action on approval of the order of election for the May 7, 2022 election to elect three City Councilmembers to Positions 1, 2 and 3. [Susie Homeyer, City Secretary]
Presentaci&oacute;n, discusi&oacute;n, y posible acci&oacute;n sobre la aprobaci&oacute;n del orden de elecci&oacute;n para las elecciones del 7 de mayo de 2022 para elegir a tres concejales de la ciudad para los cargos 1, 2 y 3.
	 Order of Election

	Agenda Item No. 12 -  Presentation, discussion, and possible action on Resolution No. 710-22, approving a joint election contract between the City of Navasota, Grimes County and the Navasota Independent School District. [Susie Homeyer, City Secretary]
Presentaci&oacute;n, discusi&oacute;n, y posible acci&oacute;n sobre la Resoluci&oacute;n No. 710-22, que aprueba un contrato electoral conjunto entre la Ciudad de Navasota, el Condado de Grimes y el Distrito Escolar Independiente de Navasota

	 Resolution No. 710-22
	 Election Cost Estimate


	Name of Early Voting Clerk: Lucy Ybarra 
	Address Dirección: P.O. Box 375
	City Ciudad: Anderson, Texas
	Zip Code Código Postal: 77830
	Telephone Number Número de teléfono: 936-873-4422
	Email Address Dirección de Correo Electrónico: Lucy.ybarra@grimescountytexas.gov
	Early Voting Clerks Website Sitio web del Secretarioa de Votación Adelantada: grimescountytexas.gov
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot: To elect three City Councilmembers to Positions 1, 2 and 3
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 2: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 3: Elegir tres miembros de concilio de la diudad para positions 1, 2 y 3
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 4: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 5: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 6: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 7: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 8: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 9: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 10: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 11: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 12: 
	Early voting by personal appearance will be conducted each weekday at:: The Navasota Center, 101 Stadium Dr., Navasota
	Hours: 8:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.
	Branch Early Voting Locations: The Navasota Center, 101 Stadium Drive, Navasota
	Hours (horas): 8:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. April 25, 2022 - May 3, 2022
	Branch Early Voting Locations 2: 
	Hours (horas) 2: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 3: 
	Hours (horas) 3: Extended voting hours: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 4: 
	Hours (horas) 4: April 26, 2022     7:00 a.m. - 7:00 p.m.
	Branch Early Voting Locations 5: 
	Hours (horas) 5: May 3, 2022       7:00 a.m. - 7:00 p.m.
	Branch Early Voting Locations 6: 
	Hours (horas) 6: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 7: 
	Hours (horas) 7: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 8: 
	Hours (horas) 8: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 9: 
	Hours (horas) 9: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 10: 
	Hours (horas) 10: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 11: 
	Hours (horas) 11: 
	Hours (horas) 12: 
	Early voting by personal appearance will be conducted each weekend at:: El Centro de Navasota,101 Estadio Manaja,Navasota
	Hours (horas) 13: 8:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. 
	Hours (horas) 14: 8:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. de April 25, 2022 - 
	Print: 
	Reset: 
	mes: April
	dia1: 07
	mes1:  Mayo
	ano1: 2022
	year:    2022
	Branch Early Voting Locations 12: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 13: El Centro de Navasota, 101 Estadio Manaja,Navasota
	Branch Early Voting Locations 14: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 15: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 16: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 17: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 18: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 19: 
	Hours (horas) 15:                                    de Mayo 3, 2022
	Hours (horas) 16: 
	Hours (horas) 17: Horario de votación extendido:
	Hours (horas) 18: de April 26, 2022   7:00 a.m. - 7:00 p.m.
	Hours (horas) 19: de Mayo 3, 2022   7:00 a.m. - 7:00 p.m.
	Hours (horas) 20: 
	month2: April
	day2:   26
	year2:  2022
	month3:  May
	day3:   9
	year3:  2022
	ano: 22
	día: 14th
	day:  May
	daya:    14th
	month: 07
	montha: April
	yeara: 22


